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Values of the Mossad 



We who serve in the Mossad share the belief that service in the organization is a national 
mission. 

We perform this mission identifying ​​with the values of the nation and statehood and with the 
goals of the Mossad. 

We adhere to values of justice, integrity, morality and simplicity, reliability and personal 
responsibility, discipline and secrecy. 

We cultivate excellence, task orientation, and dedication. 

We encourage initiative, creativity, resourcefulness, and valor, and are open to varied 
opinions and criticism. 

Mossad employees are the source of its strength, and the organization invests in cultivating 
them, developing their capabilities, and instilling them with a feeling of team spirit. 

The Mossad leadership obliges its members to lead and motivate, undertake full 
commanding responsibility and realize this in a constructive manner, provide backup, 
delegate authority, lead by example and serve as a source of inspiration. 
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New Book to Reveal How Mossad Used 
Jeffrey Epstein to Blackmail Politicians 

 
There's much mystery surrounding the life and death of Jeffrey Epstein, but this is most 
certainly the first time the pervasive Israeli spy agency has entered the scene. 
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The late convicted paedophile Jeffrey Epstein and his former girlfriend, Ghislaine Maxwell, 
were on Mossad's payroll, a new book claims. 
 
The soon-to-be-released ​Epstein: Dead Men Tell No Tales​ is an investigative work by 
journalists Dylan Howard and Melissa Cronin and novelist James Robertson. 
 
According to the book, Epstein got involved with Mossad via Robert Maxwell, the British 
newspaper tycoon of eastern European Jewish descent and Ghislaine's father. 
 
Maxwell died at sea in November 1991 at the age of 68; theories about his death range from 
accident to assassination. Shortly thereafter, it was discovered that Maxwell had plundered 
the pension funds of his employees to shore up his troubled global publishing empire. 
 
Ari Ben-Menashe, a former arms dealer who served in a senior position for Israel's Military 
Intelligence Directorate from 1977 to 1987, has previously​ ​claimed​ that Robert Maxwell and 
him had worked on arms shipments to Iran in the 1980s - which came to be known as​ ​the 
Iran-Contra affair​. 
 
As further proof of Maxwell's involvement with Mossad, Ben-Menashe - who had also 
advised President Yitzhak Shamir on foreign intelligence - said the media tycoon had tipped 
off Israeli authorities about a technician who sought to disclose his knowledge of Israel's 
nuclear programme to his newspaper. The technician, Mordechai Vanunu, was later 
abducted in Italy with the help of an undercover agent and transported to Israel, where he 
was sentenced to 18 years in jail for treason in a behind-closed-doors trial. 
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© AP Photo / Dominique Mollard 
Ghislane Maxwell, daughter of late British publisher Robert Maxwell, reads a statement in 
Spanish in which she expressed her family's gratitude to the Spanish authorities, aboard the 
"Lady Ghislaine" in Santa Cruz de Tenerife on Nov. 7, 1991. 
According to ​Dead Men Tell No Tales​, Israeli 'superspy' Rafi Eitan - the Mossad agent in 
charge of Adolf Eichmann's abduction from Argentina - had also confirmed Maxwell's ties 
with Mossad. 
 



Ari Ben-Menashe is quoted in the book as saying: "[Ghislaine] Maxwell introduced [Epstein] 
to us, and he wanted us to accept him as part of our group." 
 
Although it is widely thought that Ghislaine Maxwell and Jeffrey Epstein met in the early 
1990s, after she moved to New York following her father's death, Ben-Menashe claimed they 
began dating in the late 1980s. 
 
"Epstein was hanging around with Robert Maxwell and the daughter was hanging around 
there too, and that's how they met," he said, adding that the order to involve Epstein in arms 
deals came from Israeli intelligence agents. 
 
"Later on [Ghislaine] got involved with Israeli intelligence together with him. But not in this 
arms deal with Iran business." 
"They weren't really competent to do very much," he said of Maxwell and Epstein. "And so 
they found a niche for themselves - blackmailing American and other political figures." 

"Mr. Epstein was the simple idiot who was going around providing girls to all 
kinds of politicians in the United States. See, f**king around is not a crime. It 
could be embarrassing, but it's not a crime. But f**king a fourteen-year-old girl is 
a crime. And he was taking photos of politicians f**king fourteen-year-old 
girls...They would just blackmail people, they would just blackmail people like 
that." 

Ghislaine Maxwell hasn't been seen in public for about three years now, and the FBI is 
reportedly investigating her role in Epstein's crimes. She has been accused by several of his 
purported victims of procuring young girls for the disgraced financier. 
 
Another former friend of Epstein's who has​ ​faced increased scrutiny​ is Britain's Prince 
Andrew. At least one woman has claimed that Epstein and Maxwell directed her to have sex 
with him when she was a teen. Prince Andrew vehemently rejected the grievous charges, 
but was forced to step away from public duties this fall because of the controversy. 

  
Comment: See also: 

● Epstein 'admitted to me' he was a Mossad SPY: Ex-business partner claims Prince 
Andrew is protecting Ghislaine Maxwell because of blackmail 

● Alleged ex-Mossad handler claims Maxwell and Epstein were Israeli spies who used 
underage sex to blackmail politicians 

● Epstein disappears from view, but what about the Mossad? 
● How The CIA, Mossad And 'The Epstein Network' Are Exploiting Mass Shootings to 

Create an Orwellian Nightmare 
● Interview with Whitney Webb: Epstein is one node in a network of sexual blackmail 

by CIA, Mossad and Mafia 
● CIA-MOSSAD cluster-f**k? Neutralizing the Jeffrey Epstein case 
● Mega Group, Maxwells And Mossad: The Spy Story at The Heart of The Jeffrey 

Epstein Pedo Scandal 
● Did Pedophile Jeffrey Epstein Work For Mossad? 
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A Comprehensive History of Zionist Crimes 

Revised May 15, 2020 (update on media hype about coronavirus, also known as the 
Plannedemic or Scamdemic) 

Preface 

It was decided to compile a relatively comprehensive account of the Zionist 

Mafia's crimes, ranging from the spinning of wartime propaganda into a new 

religion for political and business purposes, to the 9/11 World Trade Center 

demolition and the London bombings. The narrative is essentially in 

chronological order, so readers may scroll down to the period of their choice. 

Some consideration of the reality behind government and press distortions of 

previous events is necessary in order to fully appreciate the current global power 

structure and motive behind 21st century atrocities. This synthesis is clearly a 

mix of facts, conjecture and opinion, and is best regarded as a hypothesis. To 

complement it, another​ ​briefer version exists in timeline format​. Although the 

following description will contain errors, it is certainly a much more accurate 

rendition of history than versions provided by governments and mainstream 

media. The material is subject to revision. 
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Prologue 

As governments continue their relentless drive towards global dictatorship, 

emasculation of national sovereignties and wilful refusal to govern for the benefit 

of their own citizens, it is clear that an international cabal or Mafia exerts great 

influence upon the obsequious flunkies and traitors who pose as 'leaders'. A 

measure of the cabal's power is provided by the fact that the armed forces of 

several nations are deployed on phony pretexts such as "WMDs", or "al Qaeda" 

conspiracy theories based on faked videos and planted 'evidence'. The military's 

legitimate defensive role has been superseded by the new mission: that of 

mercenaries employed to enrich the cabal by providing opportunities for private 

profit, from​ ​looting of oil wealth​ to​ ​heroin trafficking​. Presidents and prime 

ministers receive a​ ​relatively small share​ of the proceeds, yet must pay a heavy 

price in unpopularity and the tarnishing of their legacy. In contrast, the cabal 

reaps almost all of the loot and​ ​benefits​, and gains power to boot. The cabal's 

overriding objective is the pursuit of absolute political power; money is 

important to them, but a proportion is regularly reinvested in exchange for 

power. Their interests are not restricted to a single nation, but extend to the 

entire world. 

It is logical to refer to this global power elite as a "Zionist" Mafia or cabal, since 

Zionism has been an essential feature of their strategy over the last 110 years. 

Zionism was officially supposed to be about establishing a national homeland for 

the Jewish people. Back in 1946, Jewish terrorists dressed as Arabs bombed the 

King David Hotel​ in Palestine. These bombers, part of the​ ​Irgun group​ who were 

officially classed as "radical Zionists", were  directed by future Israeli Prime 

Minister Menachem Begin. In the same year the Irgun also​ ​plotted to kill British 

Foreign Secretary Ernest Bevin​, although the assassination attempt was foiled by 

British Intelligence. But Zionism did not stop with the creation of Israel in 1948. 

In 1954, Israel was​ ​caught red-handed in a false-flag terrorist operation​ in 

Egypt. This involved attempts to frame "Moslem militants" for a series of 

bombings, and the Israeli Defense Minister Pinhas Lavon was forced to resign in 

the ensuing scandal. In 1963, Israel's Mossad (motto: "By Way of Deception, 

thou shalt do War", although their deception includes attempting to deny that!) 

and the​ ​Meyer Lansky​ (Majer Suchowliński) Zionist crime syndicate were 

implicated in the​ ​JFK assassination​. (It was Lansky who pioneered the use of 

Swiss bank accounts for laundering the proceeds of international crime. 

Switzerland is a guaranteed war-free zone; the crooks would have too much to 
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lose.) In 1967 Israel launched a sustained, unprovoked attack on the​ ​USS 

Liberty​, hoping to pin the blame on Egypt. Unfortunately for Israel, they failed to 

sink the vessel, and had to fall back on the claim that it was a "mistake". In 

1986, Israel's "​Operation Trojan​" involved the installation of a transmitter in 

Tripoli, and was successful in tricking Reagan into bombing Libya. 

More recently, the roles of​ ​Ariel Sharon​ (Scheinermann) and​ ​Ehud Olmert​ have 

been primarily as war criminals who tended to focus on the immediate 

Middle-Eastern theater. Their overt activities included terrorising and oppressing 

Palestinians, invading neighboring Arab states, and generally carrying out as 

much ethnic cleansing - and doing as much to sabotage peace - as they could 

conceivably get away with. In contrast,​ ​Binyamin / Benjamin "Bibi" Netanyahu 

was charged with a crucially important covert role. Bibi's father Ben-Zion 

Milikowsky was secretary to​ ​Ze'ev "Vladimir" Jabotinsky​, who founded the 

Zionist terrorist movement that played an important part in the creation of 

Israel. Benjamin Netanyahu was a​ ​unit team leader in Sayeret Matkal​, an elite 

special forces unit of the Israel Defense Forces. Bibi, a close friend of Larry 

Silverstein, was​ ​in London on the morning of the 7/7 bombings​ where he 

exhibited foreknowledge of the attacks. Netanyahu's job is to supply "new Pearl 

Harbors". 

Although it turns out that the world wars and major terrorist events such as 

skyscraper demolitions, train and restaurant bombings and ferry sinkings are the 

handiwork of a Jewish Zionist Mafia, it would not be fair to blame "Jews" in 

general and assume that they are all part of a conspiracy. It would be too 

far-fetched to imagine the likes of Barry Manilow, for example, as part of a 

conspiracy for world domination; a conspiracy to send people to sleep would be 

more credible. A week after 9/11, Manilow was​ ​not calling for revenge or saying 

"Muslims did it"​. And attempts to downplay Albert Einstein's genius and paint 

him as a "warmonger" are either motivated by envy or even an incipient racism. 

The best indications are that the world's arch-villains are part of the​ ​Khazar 

tribe​. There is a partial correlation between "Jews" and the Khazars, but this is 

hard to quantify. It is also quite possible that the plotters of murder and 

mayhem are the descendants of a small association of Khazar families. It is 

therefore reasonable to conclude that just as Gentiles have been abused and 

cheated, the vast majority of the Jewish people have been cruelly exploited and 

deceived by the crooked cabal who lead them. 

There is no doubt that almost all Jews sincerely believe in the "Holocaust" legend 

(as do many Gentiles), and the criminals have seized on these fears of 

persecution by using it as a recruiting sergeant for Mossad terrorist operatives, 

who are led to believe that they are serving their nation and helping to "save 

Jews" around the world. The cabal were only too happy to sacrifice Jews in World 

War Two. Yitzhak / Izaak Greenbaum said that​ ​one cow in Palestine was worth 

more than all the Jews in Europe​ (Poland or the diaspora in some accounts). But 

even if the true death toll in the camps - mostly from typhus, and a breakdown 

in the supply chain leading to starvation - was only 100,000, that was 100,000 
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too many. Acquiring a sovereign territory was a necessary but not sufficient 

element of the criminals' program for world domination. In order to achieve the 

required political power, it was necessary to populate the territory with millions 

of people who would both imagine themselves as, and be perceived as, a 

persecuted minority. 

Hypotheses holding that all Jews are part of a conspiracy would require some 

quite extravagant postulates. For example, if an advanced alien species had 

landed on Earth in 2000 BC and created 50 pairs of Jews with unique brain 

hard-wiring ("ROM") to induce supremacist tendencies and confer a competitive 

advantage, a population growth rate of just under 0.3% p.a. (​almost three times 

the human mean​) would lead to​ ​11.2 million Jews by 1900 AD​. And the 

interesting corollary is that Creationism and Evolution would both be correct, to 

varying degrees. It is possible that emergent civilizations could be subject to a 

test, in order to protect an interstellar community from any technologically 

precocious but intellectually immature horde of savage barbarians who would 

simply shoot everyone, blow everything up, pollute the galaxy, and wreak 

havoc. 

A more chilling alternative is that the dinosaurs never became extinct, instead 

evolving into humanoid form - and then making up for their lack of numbers and 

hedonistic tendencies with cunning, brutality and wickedness. Combining 

elements of each premise would posit that a race of reptilian humanoids 

(reptoids) invaded earth several millennia ago. In order to throw people off the 

scent, a theory about "reptilians" would be promoted by a character who had 

already been turned into a figure of ridicule by his claim to be "the son of God". 

Truthful information about a conspiracy by the elite would be mixed with 

distracting nonsense about instantaneous "shape-shifting" and blood-drinking 

royals. 

However, there is no empirical support for the alien or reptilian hypotheses, and 

Occam's Razor favours the previous explanation that the Mafia warlords play on 

people's fears of persecution. Another theory that should be borne in mind in 

any general theory of evil is that of "​political ponerology​", which is about evil 

being used for political purposes. According to Andrew (Andrzej) Lobaczewski, 

“​an ever-strengthening network of psychopathic and related individuals gradually 

starts to dominate, overshadowing the others​. This rapidly develops into a 

pathocracy of a system wherein ​a small pathological minority takes control 

over a society of normal people​.” Lobaczewski says that sociopaths constitute 

about 6% of the population of any given group, which appears too high, but 

would explain a lot. His theory does not account for the Khazars being strongly 

linked to atrocities (often against Semites, and then these Caucasian Turkic 

Khazar descendants have the effrontery to cry "you're an anti-Semite" whenever 

someone exposes Caucasian crimes against Semites!) A missing link in the 

ponerology theory, e.g. harsh winters in the climate of northern Khazaria 

selecting for ruthlessness, or a degenerate pursuit of hedonism by the Khazars, 

or possibly some feature of the Khazar flora, might explain the relatively high 
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preponderance of Ashkenazi Turkic so-called "Jews" amongst the psychopathic, 

conscience-lacking fringe. 

In favor of the political ponerology theory, we all start out relatively naive, 

imagining that people are basically good. When we find that a group of people 

are fundamentally evil, it is only natural for each race or tribe to imagine that 

the evil ones must be the "other" tribe. It is hard to see how political leaders 

could carry out mass murder against their own citizens, and the obvious 

explanation is that it must be another tribe, e.g. Ashkenazi Jews or Khazars, who 

have infiltrated the government. And there is plenty of evidence of inordinate 

Zionist Israeli (Ashkenazi Jewish) influence in the governments and mainstream 

media of the "Western democracies". But if the likes of George W Bush and Tony 

Blair are sociopaths, able to present themselves as "normal" individuals but 

utterly lacking any trace of a conscience, then there would be no need to posit 

that these are "crypto-Jews", or being blackmailed into submission. 

Only a fool would claim that there are no differences of proclivities between 

various tribes or races. But we are all part of the human race, and a common 

characteristic of the various subgroups is that they all feature a decent, 

honourable majority and a crooked minority, and the ordinary people are 

oppressed (to varying extents) by their leaders who are almost invariably part of 

the crooked minority. This analysis concentrates on Zionists, Israelis or Jews 

because their criminal leaders have become more powerful than their Gentile 

rivals. In order to improve the human condition, these crooks must be exposed 

and brought to justice. 

The Mafia cabal's tactics include hiding behind the Jewish people by asserting 

that an attack on the tiny crooked elite is an "anti-Semitic" racial attack on all 

Jews. They hope to deflect attention by pretending that research into Zionist 

atrocities and lies will lead to "hate crimes". However, the well-intentioned 

researcher has better things to do with his or her time than to simply select 

some group to hate. It is high time for a new alignment based upon ethics rather 

than ethnics. The cost of doing nothing would be catastrophic for humankind: 

the criminal elite's plans for global enslavement would come to fruition. 

 

Approximately 1,250 years ago, a pagan tribe of Turks, Finns and Mongoloids - 

who had established a kingdom known as​ ​Khazaria​ in the steppe region between 

the Black and Caspian Seas - realised that converting to Judaism would reap 

massive dividends. Their King Bulan and his advisors wanted to introduce a 

monotheistic religion. However, adopting Christianity would have left them 

subservient to Rome; an alternative choice of Islam would have placed them 

under the rule of the Caliph of Baghdad. Judaism offered a third way which 

would offer the prospects of continuing to trade with both Christians and 
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Muslims, along with lucrative profits obtained through creating and exploiting 

divisions between each group. 

Attacks on Khazaria by the Rus', Byzantines and Mongols gradually forced the 

Khazar tribe to flee westwards to Eastern Europe, with some continuing right 

across to Spain and others settling in the Middle East including Egypt. The 

empire of self-styled or so-called Jews had been completely overrun by the time 

of Genghis Khan around AD 1200. In the period up to 1900, most of the 

emerging crooked cabal's operations were focused on amassing great wealth by 

way of​ ​the Rothschilds' banking exploits​. This seed money was to be used for 

political and terrorist purposes throughout the 20th century and beyond. 

In the late nineteenth century, these proto-terrorists and gangsters had a 

brilliant, Machiavellian scheme for world domination, including bribery and 

blackmail of governments, and control of the press and banking system. But in 

order to become untouchable and more powerful than the governments they 

sought to control, it was necessary for them to obtain their own sovereign state. 

And by the 1880s or 1890s this was no mean feat - the earth's territories had 

already been seized and allocated. Desperate times called for desperate 

measures. 

A decision was made to create a new world religion, whose tenets would justify 

the handing over of sovereign territory to this crooked organization. The term 

"Zionism", coined in 1890, referred to the political programme to seize territory. 

But the programme went far beyond the land grab, euphemistically defined as 

seeking "to establish a home for the Jewish people in Eretz Israel". Zionism is 

best used to describe the whole Machiavellian geopolitical 

get-immensely-rich-steadily scheme, featuring the fomenting of racial and 

religious hatred in order to establish a global dictatorship, as detailed in the 

remainder of this article and other files at​ ​www.takeourworldback.com​. The 

religion which would be an essential part of Zionism is best described as 

Holocaustianity. 

Early attempts to introduce Holocaustianity's kernel - a hoax of "six million" dead 

or dying Jews - failed, when global conditions did not include the prerequisite 

critical mass of corrupt world leaders. In June 1900, for example,​ ​Rabbi Stephen 

Wise spoke of "6,000,000 living, bleeding, suffering arguments in favor of 

Zionism"​. Another botched attempt to kick-start the myth was in 1919, when 

few believed​ ​Martin Glynn's claims of "six million" starving Jews​. On November 

25, 1936, Chaim Weizmann told of​ ​"six million" Jews in Europe​ who were 

unwanted and effectively sentenced to be imprisoned. 

The derivation of the "six million" is an ancient Jewish prophecy, which predicts 

the return of the Jews to the "Promised Land" after the loss of six million of their 

number. Specifically, the six stems from the sixth letter "vav" in the Hebrew 

alphabet or alef-bet. Six is the number of man in the Jewish tradition, since vav 

is said to be a picture of man. Man was supposedly created on the sixth day, 
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works for six days of the week, and the "beast" has the "number of a man" - 

666. Six billion deaths would be credible only to utter nincompoops; six 

thousand would be too insignificant to yield appreciable income and political 

capital. Hence, six million was chosen as a figure that almost everyone could 

agree on. 

The few who had been duped by the pre-WWII scams did provide some cash. 

However, the crooked Zionist Mafia were already immensely rich by the time of 

Glynn's assertions, through seizing control of US and European central banks 

and newspapers, and looting Russia in the "Bolshevik Revolution". Nowadays 

these crime supremos will not even get out of bed for anything less than a billion 

dollars, unless the project provides other non-financial benefits. 

It was not until the Zionists had instigated a Second World War which killed in 

excess of fifty million that these genocidal gangsters tricked the world into 

providing them with their own sovereign state, and into allowing the 

establishment of the new religion that would be employed to stifle all opposition. 

Control of their own state - "Israel" in occupied Palestine - would furnish a base 

for terrorist (Mossad) training camps, nuclear weapons, and the Zionist 

international crime syndicate. 

As we shall see, by around 2001, Israel's arsenal had extended to​ ​several 

German-built, diesel-powered submarines fitted with nuclear-tipped modified 

cruise missiles with a 900-mile range​. Their spying skills, and ability to get close 

to political leaders, were already second to none. Hence, the Zionist Mafia were 

then able to bribe, blackmail and terrorise other states into supplying their own 

armed forces as Israel's private mercenaries or proxy armies, invading and 

attacking its oil and water-rich enemy neighbouring states. The pretexts would 

range from truly asinine claims, e.g. of "WMDs" and "evil dictators" with 

"industrial shredders", to more elaborate schemes involving remote-controlled 

unmanned planes and multi-billion-dollar insurance frauds featuring skyscrapers 

felled by strategically placed thermite charges. 

Zionist mobsters had gained substantial control of the press in Europe and the 

US by the early 20th century. These criminals planned to use the "six million" 

hoax along with a World War in order to seize their state in Palestine, but it was 

a question of awaiting the right opportunity.​ ​Rabbi Stephen S Wise​ and the New 

York Times were key players right from the 1890s when the plot was hatched, 

up to the early 1940s when conditions were conducive to foisting such an 

imposture on the long-suffering public. Wise was a Secretary of the Zionist 

Organization of America, and​ ​President of the American Jewish Congress​. He was 

a pivotal figure in peddling the hoax in 1942, following his inopportune attempts 

of 1900, a mere two years after he attended the​ ​Second Zionist Congress​ at 

Basel in 1898. He was also trying to prepare the foundations when the New York 

Times of April 18, 1938 quoted him as saying that "​millions of Jews are dying 

today​". His maternal grandfather​ ​Mor(ic) Fischer​ had been a founder of the 

Herend Porcelain Company in 1839, and within thirty years was raised to the 
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ranks of the Hungarian nobility by Francis Joseph I. Wise's paternal grandfather 

Joseph Hirsch Weiss​ (formerly Weissfeld) was a Chief Rabbi in Hungary. Wise's 

father​ ​Aaron​ sought to unionize the porcelain company, prompting Fischer to 

give the family one-way tickets to New York. Aaron Wise emigrated in 1874, one 

month after Stephen's birth, with his wife and children following him in 1875. 

In 1896,​ ​Adolph Ochs​ (born to German-Jewish immigrants) bought The New 

York Times. Ochs had married Effie Wise, the daughter of another Rabbi (Isaac 

Mayer) Wise in 1884. The newspaper remained in Jewish ownership after Ochs' 

death in 1935. So in 1900, Wise was reported in the Times as saying "six 

million" bleeding, suffering Jews were a pretty good argument for Zionism, in 

1938 the Times quoted Wise as saying that "millions of Jews are dying today", 

and in 1942 Wise and the Times were co-conspirators in peddling claims of an 

"extermination of Jews". Wise and the London section of the World Jewish 

Congress were said to have been in receipt of "information" from anonymous 

sources, with confirmation provided by the Polish government in exile in London. 

The New York Times of 30 June 1942 ran an article on page 7: 

1,000,000 JEWS SLAIN BY NAZIS, REPORT SAYS 

LONDON, June 29 (U.P.) ... spokesmen for the World Jewish Congress charged 

today. 

They said Nazis had established a "vast slaughterhouse for Jews" in Eastern 

Europe ... 

A report to the Congress said that Jews, deported en masse to Central Poland 

from Germany, Austria, Czechoslovakia and the Netherlands were being shot by 

firing squads at the rate of 1,000 daily. 

Information received by the Polish Government in London confirmed that the 

Nazis had executed "several hundred thousand" Jews in Poland. 

A good indicator of the quality of this 'information' comes from the fact that 

claims of any "firing squad slaughterhouse" in Poland have been abandoned by 

even the most fundamentalist of Holocaustians. It was also asserted that Jewish 

corpses were being used to manufacture soap, glue, lubricants and artificial 

fertilizer, and these myths were never taken very seriously. On October 10, 

1942, the Vatican said it had been unable to confirm the many reports it had 

heard of severe measures against the Jews. (See A R Butz, The Hoax of The 

Twentieth Century, Chapter III.) 

The ensuing colossal fraud was not only a prerequisite for the Zionists' annexing 

of Palestine, but also served as a sword and shield enabling Sharon, Olmert et al 

to conduct terrorist operations against Gaza, Lebanon, Syria, etc, and Bibi 

Netanyahu to instigate and direct a "War on Terror" featuring false-flag staged 

terror attacks such as 9/11, London 7/7, Madrid 3/11, Amman "9/11", etc. The 

"War on Terror" enabled the 2003 invasion of Iraq, which was mostly about 
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removing a (relatively) honest leader who refused to sell his country out to the 

Zionist protection racket. This invasion also yielded fringe benefits of billions of 

dollars of looted oil wealth, i.e. the cost of the war included a massive blood 

price and vast sums of taxpayers' money, but the profits went into the pockets 

of the Zionist Mafia, with a few crumbs tossed at their lackeys. The 2001 

Afghanistan invasion was in response to the Taliban's curtailing of CIA / Mossad 

profits from opium trafficking. It was hardly about catching Osama bin Laden, 

Ayman al-Zawahiri, or Mullah Omar, none of whom were ever apprehended, and 

in any case could not be killed off since they played starring roles in the "War on 

Terror" myth. 

Back in 1913 (just before the start of WWI!), the Zionists set up the Anti 

Defamation League (ADL) in the US. The purpose of this organization was to 

denounce opponents of crime, deception, and the power elite's plans for a fascist 

global dictatorship, as "anti-Semitics". Zionist logic ran thus: Since Jews were 

merely a persecuted minority who could do no wrong, anyone who so much as 

suggested that a Jew was guilty of a crime or a conspiracy was at best mentally 

deficient, at worst a racist bigot. 

In 1916, Germany was on course to win World War One. Its submarines 

controlled the Atlantic, and the French, Italian and Russian armies were 

defecting, rebelling, or in disarray. Magnanimously,​ ​Germany did not want to 

force anything more than calling it quits and starting afresh with no strings 

attached​. 

Until October 1916, Zionists had been on the side of Germany. So the US press - 

already in the hands of Jews who also controlled the banks - supported 

Germany. Many of the American Jews had come from Germany; they also hoped 

to see Czar Nicholas II defeated. But, ever the opportunists, European Zionists 

made a deal with the British War Cabinet on the lines of: "You can still win this 

war and beat Germany. Get us Palestine as a home for the Jews, and we'll get 

the US to enter the war on your behalf." 

After the deal was concluded, the Zionist press switched sides - concocting inane 

tales of Germans chopping the hands off babies. The consequence of the deal 

was the defeat of Germany, which led to the Balfour Declaration. Britain had no 

right to give Palestine to the Zionists; nevertheless, they promised to do so. The 

Zionists had demanded something in writing to ensure the British kept their side 

of the bargain; they got​ ​the Balfour declaration​. Those who "worked with" Lord 

Balfour in drafting it - i.e., dictated it - included Chaim Weizmann and​ ​Leopold 

Amery​, a​ ​crypto-Jew​. The document promised that the British government would 

"use their best endeavours" to establish "a national home for the Jewish people" 

in Palestine. 

In Germany, Jews had been respected, admired members of the community. At 

the end of World War One, the Germans became aware of the machinations 

which had brought the US into the war, leading to Germany's defeat and the 
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associated terms of surrender and reparations. Jews were collectively blamed for 

the defeat. Although the German Jews were not physically harmed, they were 

perceived as traitors having sold out their German hosts who had treated them 

so well. Undoubtedly, there was deliberate discrimination and ostracism against 

Jews at this stage. 

In 1933, World Jewry demanded that Hitler be replaced, and German Jews be 

reinstated to their former positions. The Germans refused outright, and then 

Samuel Untermyer - a wealthy Jew with strong links to US leaders - broadcast 

an announcement that World Jewry was declaring economic war on Germany. In 

order to feed its population, Germany had to import two-thirds of its food. 82 

million Germans were crammed into an area of a few hundred thousand square 

kilometres at a time when 46 million Englishmen claimed the right to rule over 

40 million square kilometres of the earth. Boycotting of German exports would 

have left the nation unable to finance its food imports, and a number of 

Germans would have starved. Hence, the eastward territorial expansion into 

Austria and Czechoslovakia. 

A letter dated August 28, 1937, from Chancellor Heinrich Bruning to Winston 

Churchill​ stated: "I did not and do not even today, for understandable reasons, 

wish to reveal that from October 1928 the two largest regular contributors to the 

Nazi party were the general managers of two of the largest Berlin banks, both of 

Jewish faith, and one of them the leader of Zionism in Germany". 

Twenty years after the Balfour Declaration, the British had still not delivered on 

their promise to hand over part or the whole of Palestine; Zionists were also 

struggling to get their nascent "six million" hoax taken seriously. Hitler's final 

territorial solution (abbreviated to "the final solution" in Zionist propaganda) to 

the Jewish question was compulsory repatriation. He had offered - on many 

occasions right up to April 1945 - to let the Allied countries take in the Jews. 

They refused, knowing that any talk of "gas chambers" or an "extermination 

policy" was​ ​nothing more than Zionist propaganda and wild conspiracy theory​. 

The National Socialists originally hoped to send Germany's Jews to Madagascar, 

but the French would not accept them. As the conflict intensified, this idea had 

to be abandoned. The Germans did not want the Jews within the German living 

space or lebensraum; in addition, they did not want them in Palestine. In fact, 

the German foreign office's terms for sending Jews to Britain or releasing them 

via Switzerland included an insistence that they must never be transferred to 

Palestine, since the Arabs rejected the Jews just as strongly as did the Germans. 

So in the run-up to WWII, Zionists financed Hitler because they knew it would 

help them to get Palestine. Although the Germans did not want the Jews in 

Palestine, they intended to move them eastwards. The diabolical Anglo-French 

Mutual Aid Agreement with Poland, announced on March 31, 1939, led to the 

terrorising, slaughter and rape of thousands of ethnic Germans by Jews in the 

Polish corridor, with the backing of the Polish government. Germany invaded 
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Poland in order to save Germans from these outrages. The Anglo-French-Polish 

pact was so beneficial to Zionism, that if Zionists were not behind it, it was 

extraordinarily convenient. 

The Germans put some Jews in labour "concentration" camps, hoping that the 

final territorial solution to the "Jewish problem" could be resolved after the war. 

The camps were hit by terrible epidemics of typhus, particularly as the Allied 

bombing raids intensified and Soviet troops advanced. Breakdown of the supply 

chain also led to malnutrition and starvation. The gas Zyklon B - essentially 

hydrogen cyanide - was employed in tiny delousing rooms to fumigate the 

inmates' clothing in order to reduce the toll from typhus. Crematory ovens 

served to incinerate the dead and reduce the risk of contamination and infection 

compared to burial. Because of wartime scarcities, shoes, clothes, human hair 

(which was then used in the textile industry), etc was collected in piles for 

recycling. 

When the Allied forces took control of the camps, they photographed the dead 

and the dying and the malnourished, whilst omitting the large crowds who had 

remained healthy. At this point, the liars had not properly agreed on their 

stories. Some propagandists were simply trying to make the Germans look bad; 

Zionists were anxious to promote the "gas chambers" hoax. If the anti-German 

reporters had synchronised their stories with the Zionist mobsters, they would 

have shown images of the dead along with a few healthy inmates. If the camps 

really were "death camps" with an astounding processing capacity, prisoners 

would have been gassed before having time to become barely more than 

starving skin and bones. 

Other Allied propaganda was rather more cunning. They filmed the tiny 

delousing gas chambers and portrayed them as if they had been used for mass 

execution of prisoners rather than for fumigation of clothing in order to protect 

and save lives. They filmed the crematory ovens and claimed they had been 

used to dispose of the bodies of millions of victims of genocide, rather than the 

reality of cremation being a safer method of disposal than burial at a time when 

lethal infections were rife. They photographed the piles of human hair, shoes, 

etc, as if these were trophies collected by sadistic mass murderers, rather than 

part of a recycling operation by a nation fighting for its very survival against 

attacks by the US, USSR, UK, etc. They showed the cans of Zyklon B insecticide 

as if they had been used for mass murder of human beings in "gas chambers", 

as opposed to the reality of serving to kill lice in order to save lives. 

In recent times, several independent forensic analyses by investigators such as 

the chemist Germar Rudolf have found that the cyanide content of walls of the 

delousing chambers ranged from 1,035 to 13,500 mg/kg. In contrast, the walls 

of the alleged "gas chambers" exhibited zero or trace levels of up to 7.9mg/kg. 

Those trace levels are regarded as too low to be reliably interpreted as indicating 

anything other than a building selected at random. 



It is well established that cremation by modern-day ovens such as​ ​the Newton 

takes about 70 minutes per body​. At Auschwitz-Birkenau, where Holocaustianity 

claims the majority of the gassing took place (even though the figure has been 

revised from 4,500,000 to​ ​between 1 and 1.5 million​ with no corresponding 

reduction in the headline "six million Jews, five million non-Jews" figures; 

original claims of gassing in Germany proper were exposed as fake decades ago 

and quietly abandoned), there were 52 oven units or muffles in total. They were 

in operation for between one and two years. Suppose one had to dispose of 11 

million bodies over two years, suppose the time required is one hour per body, 

and suppose the ovens are to be operated throughout a 100% duty cycle 24/7 

with no stoppages for maintenance or to change the firebricks. The number of 

muffles required would be: 

11 million / (number of hours in two years) 

= 11,000,000 / (2 * 365.25 * 24) = 11,000,000 / 17,532 = 628. 

So which camps contained the other 576 muffles? In fact, the Topf ovens were 

only designed and programmed to function for twelve hours per day, so the 

Holocaustian must explain where the other 1,203 oven muffles were located. It 

is easier for the Holocaustian to propose that the laws of physics, chemistry, 

biology, mathematics, logic and psychology are not invariant throughout the last 

100 years on the earth's surface, but undergo local, temporary variations - e.g. 

Poland, 1944; and Manhattan, 2001. Presumably, it could be claimed that the 

"variations" are caused by invisible, inaudible, odorless "spirits", possibly of dead 

Jews or Muslims. The Holocaustian's world-view is but a hollow flim-flam and 

hocus-pocus. 

In any case, even after cremation, the remaining bone fragments (which must 

be crushed by mechanical means) are some 4 to 10 pounds, say 7 lb per person 

which is 77,000,000 lb or 38,500 short tons. If the Holocaust or Shoah business 

had nothing to hide, its principals would not be so anxious to prevent the 

Iranians, for example, from conducting an independent investigation to search 

for forensic evidence of the alleged Holocaust. 

The amount of coke required for cremations is known to be around 30 to 40 kg 

per corpse, let us assume 30 kg. 11,000,000 * 30 kg = 330,000 metric tonnes. 

Deliveries of coke to Auschwitz are known, and are a tiny fraction of this. From 

February 1942 to October 1943, for example, the total coke deliveries amounted 

to 1,032.5 tonnes, which is a mean monthly delivery of nearly 50 tonnes. Three 

years at 50 tonnes per month totals 1,800 tonnes. So at 30 kg per corpse we 

have 1,800 / 0.03 = 60,000 which is a long way short of 1 million let alone 11 

million. Alternatively, the earlier claim of 4 million murdered at Auschwitz would 

correspond to 0.45 kg of coke per body, or the revised 1.5 million would equate 

to 1.2 kg of coke per victim. It takes about 3.5 kg of coke (105 MJ) to merely 

boil the water in a corpse if, somehow, it had been extracted and placed in a 
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vessel beforehand - without even beginning to denature the proteins or heat the 

firebricks.  

The actual coke deliveries to Auschwitz confirm the figures in the official death 

books in the order of tens of thousands of dead, who were victims of typhus and 

starvation. The Germans were meticulous in their record keeping, and according 

to the​ ​documents captured at Oranienburg​ by the Soviet Army in April 1945, the 

total deaths from all causes in the entire German prison camp system over ten 

years was 403,713. The total for Auschwitz was 73,137, of whom 38,031 were 

Jews. Responsibility for their deaths, along with more than 50 million other 

victims of WWII's human holocaust, lies with wicked, traitorous scoundrels such 

as Churchill, Roosevelt and Stalin, together with their Zionist crime baron 

handlers. 

And the claims about other so-called "death camps" such as​ ​Treblinka​ are even 

feebler. The scriptwriters concocted a yarn about "Diesel engines from Soviet 

tanks" being used to kill Jews with carbon monoxide. Zionist logic went like this: 

gasoline engine exhaust can kill, Diesel engine exhaust smells worse, hence 

Diesel engine exhaust can kill. Unfortunately, in their ignorance they overlooked 

the fact that Diesel engines operate with a surplus of oxygen, and do not 

produce nearly enough CO to kill unless run at close to full load. 

The hoaxers came up with a bizarre 'explanation' in their attempts to account for 

the absence of forensic evidence at Treblinka - they claimed the Germans 

originally buried 870,000 victims, then Himmler decided they had better get rid 

of the evidence (rather like Saddam Hussein was said to have destroyed his 

"WMDs" to avoid getting into deep trouble). So they exhumed all 870,000 and 

burnt them in open pits using wood, in the space of four months. Open air 

cremations require at least 200 kg of wood per body, in India they allow for 300 

kg. A Douglas fir, for example, yields about 800 to 900 kg of merchantable 

wood. 7,131 cremations per day at 200 kg per corpse and 1 tonne of wood per 

tree would require 1,426 trees per day, or 100 loggers working flat out for a 

16-hour day with no breaks for meals and ablutions would have 16 / 14.26 

hours = 67 minutes to fell, chop and transport each tree to the burning pits and 

return to start on the next load. Not surprisingly, there is​ ​no evidence of soil 

disturbance, or of human or wood ashes​, and the hoaxers are so anxious to 

avoid any further investigation that they have even resorted to​ ​concreting over 

the site​! 

Back in October 1917, the Zionists had taken control of Russia in the Bolshevik 

Revolution. Lenin, originally named Vladimir Ilyich Ulyanov, had a Jewish 

maternal grandfather named Blank who later converted to Christianity. Leon 

Trotsky, originally named Lev Davidovich Bronstein, was born to Jewish parents 

in the South Ukraine. Jews comprised around 80% of the Bolshevik officials. 

Stalin's defeat of Trotsky, and purges in the Thirties, were a blow to the Zionists. 

Nevertheless, they did not forgo the opportunity to partake in an orgy of ethnic 

cleansing and looting. They failed to secure Russia as their very own Zionist 
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sovereign state, but the establishment of totalitarian societies in Eastern Europe 

helped their "Holocaust" hoax in gaining a foothold until it was generally 

accepted by governments and the unquestioning masses. 

Real historical holocausts, such as the tens of millions murdered under the 

Soviet communist regime which was instigated by ex-Khazar self-styled Jews, or 

the 1.5 million​ ​Christian Armenians massacred by the Young Turks​ (part of the 

ex-Khazars' tribe), are ignored by the Zionist press as it plays the fictional 

"Jewish holocaust" for all it is worth. And it has been worth hundreds of billions 

of marks, and more than a trillion dollars, to date. 

On July 22, 1946,​ ​Jewish terrorists dressed as Arabs blew up the King David 

Hotel in Palestine​, killing 91 and injuring 45. The perpetrators were Menachem 

Begin's Irgun extremist group; the same​ ​Menachem Begin​ who went on to win 

the  Nobel peace prize 32 years later, as Israeli Prime Minister. This false-flag 

style, in which stage-managed attacks are blamed on an innocent third party for 

political ends, was to be a cornerstone of Israeli state terrorism and frequently 

employed over the following decades including the 21st century. It did not 

always succeed - particularly in the Forties, Fifties and Sixties - in which case 

Jews ended up having to admit responsibility. However, they never showed any 

remorse. And in July 2006, Israeli right-wingers including former prime minister 

Binyamin Netanyahu held a​ ​two-day seminar to celebrate the 60th anniversary 

of the King David bombing​. 

Britain, with Arab support, had conquered Palestine from the Ottoman Turks in 

1917. The Allied Supreme Council (the US, France, Italy, Japan - and Britain) 

created a mandate for Britain to administer Palestinian territory (along with 

Transjordania and Iraq) in April 1920. The terms were subsequently approved by 

the League of Nations, forerunner of the UN. The King David Hotel was a base 

for British administrators, military command and a police division. In 1946 the 

Zionist cabal were still waiting for the British to deliver their promise on Palestine 

(as per the Balfour Declaration). And after several failures, they believed that 

their latest "six million" hoax might have better success in the context of a World 

War that had just killed at least 50 million. Killing British forces whilst pitting 

them against the Palestinians was aimed at speeding up the departure of the 

Brits and bringing about a transfer of power in favour of the Zionist cabal. 

Recent released declassified intelligence files show that Begin's Irgun terrorists 

plotted to assassinate​ British Foreign Secretary​ ​Ernest Bevin​ in 1946. Bevin, a 

moderate socialist and anti-communist, opposed the creation of a Zionist state; 

Begin was a terrorist dedicated to the use of lethal force against as many 

innocents as it took to achieve his goal of a Zionist state. The Bevin 

assassination plot was thwarted by British Intelligence, and the terrorism was 

mostly restricted to letter bombs sent to prominent British figures in 1947. 

In 1948, the Zionist Mafia got their sovereign state: Israel. This was just two 

years after the King David attack, and just as the hoax of "The Holocaust" began 
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to take hold in the minds of the true believers - aided by the Zionist media and 

the fact that Stalin and Beria would not permit independent observers to check 

the alleged crime scenes in Poland. However, subsequent events demonstrated 

that Zionism is much more than establishing a national homeland for the Jewish 

people. It is a programme for world domination and dictatorship, as documented 

in​ ​The Protocols of The Learned Elders of Zion​ and its earlier (ghost-written) 

revisions such as The Dialogue in Hell Between Machiavelli and Montesquieu 

(1864), and The Prince (c. 1516). The Protocols were not written by Russian 

secret police as Zionists try to pretend; there is​ ​ample evidence that they are 

genuine​. 

Many Jews oppose the racist supremacist warmongering policies of Zionism and 

Israel​, just as one would not expect all US and UK citizens, for example, to 

mindlessly support Bush, Blair and their Zionist handlers' criminal decimation 

and abuse of the Iraqi population. There are plenty of Jewish peace groups, e.g. 

the​ ​Jewish Peace Fellowship​. Organizations such as​ ​Jews Against Zionism​,​ ​Jews 

Not Zionists​ and​ ​Neturei Karta​ are vehemently opposed to the actions of the 

self-styled or so-called Jews who were originally pagan Khazarian Asiatics. The 

ex-Khazars' secular leaders, who are now Zionist Mafia crime lords and Israeli 

politicians, cynically exploit Judaism for political and business purposes. The 

Orthodox Jews practised Israelite customs in Biblical times, when pagan Khazar 

traditions included human and animal sacrifices. In comparison to the Khazars, 

the Israelites were a darker-skinned race from more southern climes. The 

Khazars were predominantly a light-skinned Turkic people, were not of the 

Semitic races, and had no historical ties to Palestine. This distinction persists, 

with the Jewish Israelis being lighter than the Semitic Arabs. 

It is a great irony that Hitler and his National Socialists are claimed (by the 

Zionist press) to have been "anti-Semitic" and "Aryan (or even Caucasian) 

supremacists". German National Socialists wanted to banish Jews from their 

living space; most of these Jews were ex-Khazarian Caucasians (or even 

Aryans). The same alleged anti-Semites insisted that European Jews should not 

be foisted upon the Palestinians, a Semitic people. Another irony is that those 

who oppose the status quo, of wealth redistribution from approximately 99.9% 

of the population to a tiny, crooked elite who exploit mass murder to satisfy their 

lust for power and riches, are labelled as "right-wing" extremists or "criminals" 

by the same "Robin Hood in reverse" genocidal megalomaniacs they are 

attempting to bring to justice. 

In May 1949, former US Secretary of Defense​ ​James Forrestal was found dead at 

the Bethesda Naval Hospital in suspicious circumstances​. This was less than two 

months after he had been fired by President Truman. Forrestal had been the 

administration's leading opponent of the formation and US recognition of Israel. 

Seven weeks after being committed for "treatment", apparently against his will, 

his body was found on a ledge beneath a window of his 16th-floor room. The 

official account held that it was "suicide". It was said he had been copying a 

morbid poem by Sophocles shortly before plunging from the window, but the 
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handwriting on the transcription did not match that of Forrestal. A belt or cord 

from his dressing gown was tied tightly around his neck, but there was no 

evidence that the other end had ever been secured to a radiator, say, for a 

hanging attempt. In any case, a would-be suicide could have simply jumped 

rather than attempt a hanging. It appears that Forrestal was strangled and 

thrown out of the window. 

As he still represented a threat to Israel's interests, Israeli forces would be a 

prime suspect. There remains the possibility that Israel was innocent in this 

case, and the assassination was to prevent publication of Forrestal's knowledge 

of corruption in the Truman administration. However, theories of Zionist 

complicity in this case have been bolstered by recently released documents 

showing that Menachem Begin's Irgun Jewish terrorist group​ ​plotted in 1946 to 

kill Ernest Bevin​, Britain's anti-Zionist counterpart to Forrestal. Begin was 

supposed to have turned to politics after the state of Israel was founded in 1948. 

But Jewish terrorism did not stop with the formation of Israel. 

In July 1954, American and British interests in Cairo and Alexandria were hit by 

a series of bombs. These were originally thought to have been placed by militant 

Moslems. A couple of years prior to the eruption of the "Suez Crisis", 

negotiations were taking place between Egypt and Britain over control of the 

Suez Canal, and it was thought that militants were attempting to scupper any 

compromise by Colonel Nasser. In October 1954, Egypt announced that​ ​an 

Israeli spy ring​ of thirteen saboteurs had been broken up. The plot was 

uncovered when incendiary bombs went off prematurely in the pocket of one of 

the perpetrators, outside a British-owned Alexandria theatre. 

There were claims of an "​anti-Semitic frame-up​". However, the result was 

humiliation for Israel when it was forced to admit its responsibility for the 

terrorist attacks. It had been Israel's head of Intelligence, Colonel Benyamin 

Givli, who had independently ordered the spies to strike. However, his boss, 

Defense Minister Pinhas Lavon who was oblivious of the operation, ended up 

having to resign, and the incident was dubbed the "Lavon Affair". Note that 

phosphorus, used in the 1954 attacks, was later used to sink an Egyptian ferry 

in 2006 with the loss of around 1,000 lives (q.v. below). 

In November 1963,​ ​Israel's Mossad operatives assassinated US President John F 

Kennedy​. The motive was that Kennedy​ ​opposed Israel's (i.e. the Zionist Mafia's) 

plans to develop nuclear weapons​ at its (their)​ ​Dimona facility​ in the Negev 

Desert. Naturally, an official version of events was concocted, denying any 

Israeli involvement, and claiming that Oswald, the patsy, was a "lone assassin". 

The official fiction was not supported by eyewitnesses, who reported that shots 

were fired from the Grassy Knoll rather than Oswald's location in the Texas 

School Book Depository. They also reported seeing a​ ​cloud of smoke in the Knoll 

area​. Eighteen of these material witnesses died within the next three years. 

Oswald was shot by Jack Ruby (a Jew, born as​ ​Jacob Leon Rubenstein​). Clay 
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Shaw, who had been observed with Ruby / Rubenstein, was on the Board of 

Directors of Permindex, a Swiss Corporation which was a Mossad front. 

Permindex had been expelled from Italy and Switzerland in 1962 for subversive 

activity. The Banque De Credit International of Geneva (a.k.a. Credit Suisse), 

founded by Mossad financier Tibor Rosenbaum, was a major shareholder in 

Permindex. Louis Bloomfield of Montreal was the chairman of Permindex, and an 

agent of Canada's Bronfman family. Meyer Lansky was a prominent Zionist and 

head of the global crime syndicate, who used the Swiss bank for money 

laundering. 

In June 1967, the state of Israel carried out​ ​a sustained air and naval attack on 

the USS Liberty for over an hour​, employing torpedoes, machine guns and 

napalm rockets. 34 men were killed and more than 170 wounded. According to 

Israel, the attack was a "tragic accident" due to "misidentification". The ancient 

Egyptian freighter that Israel claimed to have mistaken the Liberty for was of 

totally different appearance, and there is ample evidence that they knew full well 

that their target was an American ship, following two days of reconnaissance by 

Israeli planes. 

In the early stages of the attack, US planes were launched from nearby carriers 

to assist the Liberty, in response to its SOS. When Washington was notified, US 

Defense Secretary Robert McNamara ordered these aircraft back to the carriers. 

At the time of the attack, US President Lyndon Johnson (supposedly 

representing the US people rather than international racketeers) said, "​I don't 

give a damn if every man drowns and the ship sinks. I don't want to embarrass 

our allies.​" 

Israel's plan was to sink the Liberty, kill any survivors (which it attempted by 

firing on the life rafts), frame Egypt for the attack, and provoke the US into 

attacking Egypt. After assassinating Kennedy, the Zionist Mafia crime lords had 

installed their stooge - Johnson - as US President. All US opposition to Israel's 

nuclear programme had, predictably, vanished. Johnson and McNamara were 

probably advised in advance of the plan to sink a US ship to provide the US with 

a pretext for attacking Egypt. When the Liberty failed to sink, two hours into the 

operation, Tel Aviv and Washington had to revert to Plan B - the claim of an 

'accident'. 

As the Zionist Mafia gained in power and influence, they became ever more 

brazen and demanding. Once merely a band of very rich gangsters with excellent 

skills in bribery, blackmail and deception who were blagging their way into 

seizing their own sovereign state, they progressed through to gangsters trying to 

become a nuclear power, and then to a Mafia who not only had their own nuclear 

sovereign state and international ring of spies and terrorists but also a capability 

to deliver nuclear warheads anywhere within 900 miles of the coast. An 

embryonic Mafia will run protection rackets and have politicians in its pocket. 

Advanced globalist gangsters manage a protection racket that has entire 

governments in its pocket - bribing, blackmailing, and terrorising them into 
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submission. Whenever one of the Zionist Mafia's client satellite states does 

something which displeases its crime lord masters, the ex-Khazar terrorists 

order a hit, which the satellite must then blame on a suitable patsy (or 

bogeyman) who (or that) is acceptable to both parties. 

In the Eighties, when Reagan was US President, Libya was frequently selected as 

the 'perpetrator' of Israel and the Mossad's various deceptions and terrorist acts. 

Whenever a Bush was in the White House, the crimes would be blamed on Iraq 

and Saddam Hussein. Clinton, although something of a sleazeball, appears to 

have resisted some of his blackmailers' demands such as large-scale invasion of 

Iraq or Afghanistan. Hence, his trysts with Monica Lewinsky were publicized. 

In April 1986, a bomb exploded in La Belle Discotheque in Berlin. Three were 

killed including two US soldiers, and over 200 injured. Ten days later, Ronald 

Reagan gave the order to bomb Libya. Around 37 people were killed including 

Colonel Gaddafi's adopted baby daughter, and over 200 wounded. This was the 

result of​ ​the Mossad's Operation Trojan​ - known by their agents as "the old 

Trojan dick trick" - that conned some countries into believing Libya was actually 

behind terrorism such as the Berlin disco bombing. It is true that there was a 

territorial dispute between the US and Libya, following some provocative US 

naval manoeuvres in the Gulf of Sidra. But Libya was innocent of many of the 

terrorist crimes it was alleged to have committed. 

Shimon Peres had given the order to launch Operation Trojan in February 1986. 

One of Israel's ships would broadcast misleading pre-recorded digital 

transmissions that could only be received by a Mossad device planted in Tripoli - 

the Trojan. The Trojan would retransmit a signal on a frequency known to be 

used for official Libyan business, ready to be received by the Americans or their 

allies. The source would appear to be emanating from such location as to appear 

genuine, and Western intelligence services would find that the Mossad also had 

confirmation that these series of "terrorist orders" were supposedly being 

broadcast to various Libyan embassies. 

On the night of February 17-18,​ ​an Israeli team of naval commandos headed for 

Tripoli​. The dark green Trojan cylinder, six feet long and seven inches in 

diameter, was carried by two men from the shore to a grey van parked about a 

hundred feet from the water's edge. The van driver - a Mossad combatant - 

stopped "repairing a flat tyre" as the team approached and opened the rear 

doors. He then headed for Tripoli, accompanied by four commandos. Wrapped in 

a carpet, the Trojan cylinder was carried by the Mossad combatant and two 

commandos to a Mossad-rented apartment on the top floor of a five-storey 

building, and installed in front of a north-facing window. In the event of 

unauthorised entry to the apartment, the Trojan was rigged to self-destruct, 

taking out most of the upper part of the building. In that case, the Western 

press would doubtless have blamed "Muslim terrorists" for the incident. 
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France and Spain smelt a rat and realised that the broadcasts were bogus. If 

Western Intelligence had been monitoring transmissions of a conspiracy to bomb 

the Berlin disco, then they should have been able to prevent the attack. 

Officially, the Mossad claimed not to know the identity of those who had carried 

out the attack. In fact, they would be the prime suspect. 

The​ ​bombing of Pan Am 103​, which crashed in December 1988 at Lockerbie, 

Scotland, was probably another Mossad operation. Evidently, the Mossad were 

running drugs and had to eliminate CIA operatives who knew too much. 

Whatever the motive, normal practice would be to frame some innocent third 

party. A retired Scottish police chief - described as "of assistant chief constable 

rank or higher" - gave lawyers a signed statement testifying that the CIA planted 

a tiny fragment of circuit board that supposedly linked Libya to the crime. The 

fragment was identified by the FBI as part of a timer device used to control a 

detonator. Mebo, a Swiss company, manufactured these electronic timers and 

supplied them only to Libya and East Germany's Stasi. But in 2003, a retired CIA 

officer gave a statement to the lawyers of a Libyan convicted and jailed for the 

bombing,​ ​admitting that evidence had been planted​. This was later corroborated 

by the former Scottish police chief, who was a member of the Association of 

Chief Police Officers Scotland. The Zionist press had also been quick to blame 

Syria and Iran for Lockerbie; Israel is the prime beneficiary of conflict between 

the West and Islamic nations. 

Other terrorist operations conducted by Israel in the late 20th century included 

the murder of 220 US Marines and 21 other servicemen in a massive bombing in 

Beirut (to teach the Americans not to interfere in Lebanon), the 1995 Oklahoma 

City bombing of a Federal building by Jews including Andreas Strassmeir and 

Daniel Spiegelman which killed 168 (blamed on "white supremacist" patsies in 

order to discredit US patriots), the 1985 hijacking of the Achille Lauro by "Abu 

Abbas" who killed a disabled American Jewish tourist and threw his body and his 

wheelchair overboard (to turn world opinion against Arabs and in favour of 

Israel), the murder of British policewoman Yvonne Fletcher in 1984 (another 

false-flag operation that was blamed on Libya), and other acts blamed on Abu 

Nidal (a Zionist agent) and his Black September group. When briefing and 

remunerating their agents, Mossad katsas would sometimes pose as Sicilian 

dons. In addition to JFK, targets of Mossad assassination squads included Robert 

Maxwell (Jan Hoch), and Gerald Bull (who designed and worked on a "supergun" 

project for Iraq). 

On October 31, 1999, EgyptAir Flight 990 - a Boeing 767 - plunged into the 

Atlantic. Officially, the 'accident' was​ ​blamed on a suicidal co-pilot​. The reality, 

as usual, involved powerful, wealthy criminals lured by the prospect of further 

political and financial benefits. Israel and the Zionist Mafia planned to conduct a 

major false-flag terror attack within the next two years. They needed to conduct 

a trial run to test​ ​remote control technology for taking over planes already in 

flight​, and they needed to promote the concept of "Muslim suicide pilots" to a 

gullible public. As a bonus, they got to murder​ ​33 Egyptian army officers 
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including two Air Force brigadier generals and two army major generals. Other 

ill-fated flights out of JFK International Airport, NY​, included TWA 800 (July 

1996), allegedly destroyed by a center wing fuel tank that 'accidentally' 

exploded in mid-air, and​ ​American Airlines 587​ (November 2001), which crashed 

shortly after take off when its entire vertical tail section and both engines 

happened to fall off, supposedly as a result of "wake turbulence". 

In February and March of 2001, the Zionist-controlled Fox TV network broadcast 

a documentary titled "Conspiracy Theory - Did We Land on the Moon?" on the 

notion that the Apollo landings were a hoax, with scenes having been filmed in a 

US desert. The evidence that the Apollo landings were faked is much weaker 

than the evidence that they were genuine. The motive for the timing of these 

Fox broadcasts was Zionist foreknowledge of a massive Mossad false-flag 

terrorist operation that was planned for the second half of that very year. The 

Zionists knew that sceptics would be able to prove that the official government 

account of the forthcoming major event was false, and it would not be possible 

to refute the sceptics with rational arguments. Hence, it would be necessary to 

resort to ad hominem attacks in which they would be portrayed as tin-foil-hatted 

crackpot conspiracy theorists, in the same mould as the Apollo Moon landings 

sceptics. 

It is proven beyond the slightest shadow of doubt that Israeli agents had 

foreknowledge of the 9/11 attacks, and together with scientific forensic proof of 

controlled demolitions of WTC1, 2 and 7 along with the sheer implausibility of 

many elements of the official account such as Hani Hanjour flying a Boeing 757 

into the first floor of the Pentagon at 530 mph with the engines clearing the lawn 

by a couple of feet, this wasn't simply a case of LIHOP. It wasn't merely a 

question of Zionists who were aware of a Muslim aircraft hijacking plot yet 

purposely let it happen. It was MIHOP: ​criminal Zionist Jews​ planned and 

orchestrated the 9/11 attacks. They ​made it happen on purpose​ and ​made 

damn sure that the Twin Towers collapsed killing thousands of people​, 
so that Israel's so-called "allies" would be sufficiently outraged to wage war on 

Israel's foes. See​ ​The "Dancing Israelis" FBI Report - Debunked​ for full analysis 

and links to sources. 

In late September 2001,​ ​a large-scale 37-nation poll of world opinion​ carried out 

by Gallup International found Mexico to be more opposed to the Afghanistan war 

than almost any other - if not any other - nation, with 94% of Mexicans favoring 

a legal response in the form of extradition and trial, rather than military action. 

A couple weeks later, Mossad agent Salvador Guersson Smecke and Israeli 

illegal immigrant Saur Ben Zvi were caught red-handed and​ ​arrested inside the 

Mexican Congress​ chamber in possession of​ ​guns, grenades, dynamite, 

detonators and wiring​ while posing as "press photographers". That failed 

false-flag operation, on​ ​October 10, 2001​, was aimed at boosting​ ​Mexican 

support​ for the war, a mere three days​ ​into the invasion​. 
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The very first people arrested on suspicion of involvement in the 9/11 attacks 

turned out to be five ​Israeli Jews​: Sivan Kurzberg, Paul Kurzberg (Sivan's 

brother), Oded Ellner, Yaron Shmuel and Omer Marmari. Their white Urban 

Moving Systems van was stopped and they were arrested within hours of the 

attacks, on the afternoon of 9/11/01. Sivan Kurzberg, Ellner and Shmuel had 

been observed by several eyewitnesses at the rear parking lot of the Doric 

apartment complex in Union City, New Jersey. They were seen atop the van with 

cameras, ​high-fiving, smiling, joking with​ ​cries of joy and mockery​, 
hugging each other​, and taking photographs and video of the Twin Towers 

within a few minutes of the first plane impact. 

 

Source:​ ​KURZBERG, SIVAN ET AL (FBI report), Section 5 

In fact, they were seen filming atop the van ​before​ the local news radio station 

1010 WINS had even broken the news of the first plane crash. The station 
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actually had one of its sales team account executives on her cell phone to its 

newsroom ​before​ the first plane crashed after she noticed it was too low and 

was going to crash, and so were quickly able to patch her on air to provide a live 

report. When seen, Ellner was kneeling at the back of the van facing New York 

City with his camera and Kurzberg and Shmuel were facing him. After their film 

was developed and processed by the FBI, the photographs depicted all three 

Israelis visibly smiling. In one photo, Kurzberg could be seen​ ​flicking a lighter 

like he was at a rock concert as the North Tower burned in the background. This 

jovial celebration​ was taking place ​before​ the second impact, ​when innocent 

bystanders believed the incident was merely a tragic accident​. 

When arrested, the Israelis - dubbed the "High-Fivers" by the FBI - were found 

to have airline tickets with immediate travel dates for destinations world-wide, 

and tie-ins to 9/11. 
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Original source:​ ​The Record​ (Bergen County) 

Early reports said that these "tie-ins" were "maps of the city" with "certain 

places highlighted" linking the Israelis to the "bombing plot".​ ​Carl Cameron's 

subsequent Fox News report​ of 12/12/01 told of a "highly placed investigator" 

who admitted that there were tie-ins, but refused to provide details. The 

investigator stated, "Evidence linking these Israelis to 9-11 is classified, I cannot 

tell you about evidence that has been gathered. It is classified information." In 
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other words, there is evidence linking them, but the investigator can't confirm 

the early reports regarding maps because Israel is too high in the pecking order. 

Marc Perelman of New York's Jewish weekly ​The Forward​ reported on​ ​March 15, 

2002​ that the FBI had concluded that at least two of the Israelis were agents 

working for the Mossad, and their employer​ ​Urban Moving Systems Incorporated 

was a suspected intelligence front. On September 14, 2001, Urban's owner 

Dominick Suter​ fled the U.S.​ ​for Israel​. Perelman also​ ​tells on video​ of how he 

was able to confirm that, according to the FBI, two of the five Israelis were 

"Mossad agents". Christopher Ketcham says the transcripts of the Carl Cameron 

report were later removed from the Fox News website following pressure from 

Abe Foxman of the ADL, and replaced with the rather Orwellian message: "This 

story no longer exists". 

The FBI documents on the five Israelis were heavily redacted before release, 

with the more politically sensitive parts blanked out and classified until 2030 or 

2035. Nevertheless, the information retained shows that Paul Kurzberg worked 

for the Jewish Agency, and his brother Sivan's job in Israel had involved hunting 

Arabs of whom the Zionist regime did not approve. The FBI documents also 

show how the NS-2C Unit of its "National Security Division" from FBI 

Headquarters, Washington, D.C., in a communication dated 09/24/2001, ordered 

FBI-Newark to call off its investigation of the Israelis and to "assist US 

Immigration and Naturalization Service (INS) in any INS proceedings for the five 

Israeli Nationals in detention at the Federal Bureau of Prisons, Metropolitan 

Detention Center in Brooklyn, New York". Dual US-Israeli citizen​ ​Michael 

Chertoff​, who​ ​co-authored the USA Patriot Act"​ and headed the Justice 

Department's Criminal Division in the aftermath of 9/11, is a prime suspect for 

pulling strings to get the Israelis released and sent home. 

All three Israelis lied, providing conflicting alibis of how they came to be seen at 

the Doric parking lot within such a short time of the first plane crash. Their alibis 

were physically impossible, given the time available for one of them to receive a 

telephone call from a friend alerting him to the news of a plane crash, then to 

read about the event on the Israeli news site YNET.co.il and the U.S. site 

CNN.com on two of their moving company's sixteen computers, then for the 

three of them to make the bizarre decision that it would be worth leaving their 

workplace - and risk the wrath of their boss who was "tight with money" and 

normally did not let his employees take his vans for personal use - to 

"document" for "history" a simple plane crash that no innocent person could 

have known would turn out to be the defining event of the turn of the century, 

to gather up their cameras which they luckily had with them at work that day 

and run out to their employer's van, to drive through rush hour traffic on what is 

normally a four to five-minute journey as they thought of a suitable location on 

the fly, make a left turn into an apartment block and drive around to the rear 

parking lot, get out and climb onto the roof of the van with their cameras, 

ending up at a location where one of them (Sivan Kurzberg) had been sighted 

the previous day posing as a "construction worker", all of this having to occur 

http://whatreallyhappened.com/WRHARTICLES/israelis_9-11.html
http://whatreallyhappened.com/WRHARTICLES/israelis_9-11.html
http://whatreallyhappened.com/WRHARTICLES/israelis_9-11.html
http://www.state.nj.us/lps/ca/press/storage.htm
http://www.state.nj.us/lps/ca/press/storage.htm
http://www.fpp.co.uk/online/02/03/WTC/spies9.html
http://www.fpp.co.uk/online/02/03/WTC/spies9.html
http://www.historycommons.org/entity.jsp?entity=dominick_suter
http://www.historycommons.org/entity.jsp?entity=dominick_suter
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fRLZVBtoMcE
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fRLZVBtoMcE
http://cryptome.org/eyeball/chert/chert-eyeball.htm
http://cryptome.org/eyeball/chert/chert-eyeball.htm
http://cryptome.org/eyeball/chert/chert-eyeball.htm
http://www.fraud-magazine.com/article.aspx?id=236
http://www.fraud-magazine.com/article.aspx?id=236


within a few minutes before the local news radio station had broken the news of 

the first plane crash. In their first alibis, Shmuel claimed they were on the West 

Side Highway in New York City at the time of the "incident", Kurzberg said they 

first climbed onto the Urban Moving Systems roof and were then stuck in heavy 

traffic before arriving at Doric, and Ellner claimed they stopped at a Gulf gas 

station on the way to Doric after hearing of the first plane crash. Ellner's new, 

improved alibi was the variation in which he received a telephone call from a 

friend alerting him to the first plane crash, and two of the Israelis then spent "a 

few minutes" reading about the event on CNN.com and YNET.co.il before setting 

off to Doric. 

In the real world, as opposed to some fantasy dreamed up by tinfoil conspiracy 

kooks or concocted by inveterate liars about nineteen Arabs with box cutters, 

events occur in a certain well-defined order that all observers can agree on, 

unless they are traveling at relativistic velocities or someone has invented a way 

of bending the local space-time manifold. Websites such as CNN.com did not 

carry the news until​ ​after 8:49:34​, and the first reports were of a fire, not a 

plane crash. Traffic to news sites was so heavy that many servers collapsed. 

CNN.com and the Israeli news site YNET.co.il did not have news posted about 

the first plane crash at a time such that several Israelis could browse the 

internet and read about it on Urban Moving's computers for a "few minutes" 

(which would imply that there was already so much detail about the event on 

news sites that it must have been long after the first impact), then go on a four 

or five-minute journey through rush-hour traffic, make a left turn and drive 

around to a parking lot at the back of an apartment complex, jump out and 

climb onto the top of the van and turn on their cameras, all before the local AM 

news radio station 1010 WINS was able to broadcast its breaking news report 

from a WINS account executive who was on scene and actually on her cell phone 

to the WINS newsroom ​before​ the first plane crashed. And all in the time it 

takes for a Doric apartment resident to be prompted to look out of the window 

by the sound of the impact or explosion as the first plane slammed into the 

North Tower at approximately 8:46:30 a.m., to scan the area for a minute or 

two before observing the smoke from the WTC, then to "immediately" telephone 

her friend, and for her friend to grab her binoculars and look out of the window 

and see the three Israelis atop the van. No browsing the internet, leaving work 

to go on a drive through rush-hour traffic, or climbing onto the roof of a van 

required. And all in the time it takes another eyewitness at Doric to notice the 

disaster, to walk along to an apartment to inform his colleague within five 

minutes of the first impact, and for the colleague to stand up from painting the 

baseboard and look out of the window to see the three Israelis atop the van. 

The Doric location afforded an​ ​excellent view​ of both the North and South 

Towers across the Hudson River in New York City, and was an ideal location for 

recording video footage of planes approaching each Tower - one from the north 

and one from the south. In contrast, the Urban Moving Systems office and 

warehouse was north of the World Trade Center, and although it provided a view 
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of the top of the North Tower, it would have been a lousy choice for anyone 

planning to "document" an event that included a plane approaching from the 

south to crash into the South Tower. Moreover, the Israelis quickly left the 

parking lot after the second plane crash, which would be puzzling behavior for 

wannabe journalists who'd just seen two plane crashes and were not to know 

there wouldn't be a third. At the time they were seen celebrating the first plane 

crash they were not out on a delivery or collection as part of their job. Oded 

Ellner later said on Israeli TV that their purpose was to "document the event". 

There is​ ​no credible evidence​ that Arab "hijackers" were on any of the four 9/11 

planes.​ ​Mossad agents​ posing as "​art students​" - agents of the true 9/11 

perpetrators - had been concentrated around the Hollywood, Florida area, which 

is where 15 of the 19 alleged hijackers were living in June 2001. 

A​ ​memorandum by Gerald Shea​ features a document known as the​ ​DEA report​, 
which describes how more than a hundred​ ​Israelis​ were in the U.S. posing as 

"​art students​" between January 2000 and September 2001, and​ ​attempting to 

penetrate U.S. Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) offices​ and other federal 

buildings including​ ​36 sensitive Department of Defense (DoD) sites​. Shea writes: 

A third principal was Hanan Serfaty (or Sarfati), a team leader 

residing in Hollywood, Florida. When questioned by the DEA in 

Tampa, Florida, on March 1, 2001, he had in his possession bank 

deposit slips amounting to more than $100,000 from December 2000 

through the first quarter of 2001, and withdrawal slips for slightly less 

than that amount during the period. Mr. Serfaty served in the Israeli 

military between the ages of 18 and 21, but refused to disclose to the 

DEA his activities between the ages of 21 and 24, including his 

activities since his U.S. arrival at age 23 in 2000.​14​
 Another was Peer 

Segalovitz of Tamarac, Florida (about 20 miles west of 

Hollywood—see MAP 1), an active officer in an Israeli special forces 

battalion who commanded 80 men in the Golan Heights. He was 

detained in Orlando on May 3, 2001. 

Shea continues: 

...in June 2001, just two or three months before the September 11 

hijackings, 15 of the 19 future hijackers were also living in Hollywood, 

nine in the town itself and six in surrounding towns (see Exhibit B and 

MAPS 1 and 2). Hollywood, for months, had been and would continue 

to be the staging ground for the hijacking of the World Trade Center 

Planes and the Pennsylvania Plane. Among the Israeli groups, more 

than 30 lived in the Hollywood area, 10 in Hollywood itself. 

Map 1 in the memorandum covers the Hollywood, Florida area. 
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Source:​ ​The Gerald Shea memorandum on the DEA Report 

Anyone believing the official version of events should have been asking what the 

hell were so many Israeli spies doing in the U.S., supposedly an "ally" of Israel, 

which is a country the size of New Jersey. After all, Israel's enemies are 

supposed to be the Palestinians and neighboring Arab states. Any Palestinian 

"terrorist" who wanted to blow up Israelis would simply go ahead and do so, not 

go traveling around the globe and training for months or years to become a 

pilot. And if​ ​the Mossad​ were so hot on tracking Arab terrorists and there really 

had been an "Arab" plot to crash planes into the World Trade Center, then they 

should have provided a public warning so that everyone could have been 

evacuated. Of course, the Mossad did warn some people. The​ ​two hours' 

advance warning of an attack on the WTC​ transmitted through Odigo, the Israeli 

instant messaging company with offices in Herzliya and New York, was probably 

sent to some individuals at the level of vice-president or above. Larry Silverstein 

was well aware that he and his children could not turn up for work at the WTC 

on the morning of 9/11. 

An important part of these Mossad agents' job was to craft the "Arabs did 9/11" 

legend by stealing passports and finding Arabs to frame, for example by 

carefully observing​ the movements of Saudi Airlines flight engineers who'd been 

sent to Florida for pilot training because the airline was eliminating flight 

engineers from its three-member crews. The program had ended for some of the 

engineers shortly before 9/11, which is​ ​why they were leaving​ the Vero Beach, 

Florida area around that time. Problem was, it meant that many of the "dead 
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hijackers" would turn up alive and indignant, probably in Saudi Arabia, and those 

pushing the legend would have to resort to claiming it was just lots of cases of 

mistaken identity. A good exposition of the frame-up and the evolving list of 

hijackers' names can​ ​be found in​ Paul Zarembka's ​The Hidden History of 9-11​. 

 

Source:​ ​Paul Zarembka ​The Hidden History of 9-11 

 

If Satam al-Suqami, Waleed al-Shehri and Wail al-Shehri had been on the flight 

manifests, the authorities would not have initially claimed​ ​Adnan Bukhari​,​ ​Ameer 

Bukhari​ and​ ​Amer Kamfar​ as hijackers in their place. Adnan was found to be 

alive and living in Florida​. Ameer​ ​died in a small plane crash​ on September 11, 

2000 - exactly one year too early. On September 14, 2001, Kamfar was reported 

as being possibly alive and "​armed with an AK-47​", and then he turned out to be 

alive and innocent and​ ​living in Mecca​: one of those flight engineer / pilots who'd 

been recalled from Vero Beach to Saudi Arabia. And given that Ameer Bukhari 

had been dead for a year and Adnan Bukhari was not a hijacker, the claim that 

their names were on paperwork​ relating to a rented 2001 silver-blue Nissan 

Altima found at Portland International Jetport, Maine, was a lie. The alternative 

is a story that makes no sense: that Atta rented a Mitsubishi sedan in his real 
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name, then bizarrely abandoned the Mitsubishi at Boston's Logan Airport and 

inexplicably rented a Nissan using identities stolen from the Bukharis to travel to 

Portland with Alomari on a journey that meant they would risk missing their 

connecting flight with the consequent failure of their mission. 

Of course, the Portland diversion was a necessary part of the legend because 

this was the ​only​ video footage the authorities had of any of the "hijackers" at 

an airport within days of 9/11. The grainy "surveillance video" that lacked a time 

stamp, purportedly of "hijackers" at Washington Dulles, was not released until 

July 2004. And they also had images of Atta and Alomari at a Portland ATM in 

which their faces were clear enough for a positive identification. The Portland 

narrative provided the opportunity for​ ​Atta's baggage​ to be 'found' with lots of 

incriminating 'evidence' after the baggage supposedly missed Atta's final flight, 

as if a suicide pilot would choose to take their last will and testament with them 

on a plane that they were planning to crash into a skyscraper, rather than leave 

it some place where it would certainly be found (or destroy it instead, if they 

didn't want it to be found). 

For anyone in need of "Saudi suicide pilots" to frame as patsies, the deceased 

pilot Ameer Bukhari, a Saudi Arabian national of Vero Beach, Florida, would have 

been an ideal choice provided they could keep the lid on the fact that he had 

died in the "wrong" year. The "Alomari" hijacker was​ ​originally​ Abdul Rahman 

Alomari, a pilot, friend and neighbor of Adnan Bukhari. When Alomari was found 

to be alive, as was Adnan Bukhari, the hijacker was claimed to be Abdulaziz 

Alomari. Problem is, he​ ​turned up alive​ too, although his name and birth date 

matched that of the FBI's "terrorist". And he's never been a pilot. His passport 

was stolen when his apartment in Denver, Colorado, was burgled in 1995. 

Daniel Mark Lewin, an Israeli-"American" Zionist Jew who was​ ​briefly a billionaire 

at the height of the dot-com boom in 1999, is said to have been on Flight 11. 

Lewin, in common with Benjamin Netanyahu who declared on separate occasions 

that 9/11 was "​very good​" and​ ​beneficial​ for Israel, served in the clandestine IDF 

special forces unit​ ​Sayeret Matkal​, is an alumnus of MIT, and was part raised in 

the U.S. and part raised in Jerusalem. Sayeret Matkal was a part of Aman 

(military intelligence "unit 154"), and many of its members were originally Aman 

"mista'arvim" -​ ​experts at disguising themselves as Arabs​. In an interesting 

'coincidence', Lewin and Abdulaziz Alomari were both claimed to have been on 

Flight 11, and Lewin was​ ​a native of Denver​, which is where one of the "wrong" 

Alomaris had his passport stolen. 

Another remarkable 'coincidence' is that one alleged hijacker - Ziad al-Jarrah - 

was​ ​the cousin of Ali al-Jarrah​, who happened to have been working from 1983 

to 2008 as an Israeli intelligence asset. Ali's brother Yusuf is also understood to 

have helped Ali betray his compatriots by spying for Israel. Ali al-Jarrah received 

more than $300,000 for his "work" from Israel. ​The New York Times​ claimed 

that the two cousins did not "appear" to have known each other "well", a tacit 

admission that they did know each other. The most likely explanation for this 
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'coincidence' is that Ziad al-Jarrah was also an Israeli intelligence asset who had 

been​ ​recruited by his older cousin​. 

There is multiple corroborating evidence that​ ​Muslims did not do 9/11​, and that 

Israel​ played a​ ​central role​, aided by corrupt elements of the Bush 

administration. This is reinforced by Zionist Jews' role in the cover-up:​ ​Jerome 

Hauer's​ appearance on TV within hours of the attacks peddling the official story 

about "Osama bin Laden" and buildings that collapsed because of plane impacts 

and intense fires, the Herzliya-based Don Radlauer's publication of​ ​a report 

detailing the flight paths of the alleged four hijacked planes that suggested 

hijacking and steering the planes would have been an easy task, Eddie Guigui 

Shalev's​ ​claim that​ Hani Hanjour was a "good" pilot, and Bernard Kerik's receipt 

of more than $236,000 (as "rent") from Steven C. Witkoff along with a $250,000 

"loan" originating​ ​from Eitan Wertheimer​, after Kerik had​ ​traveled to Israel​ two 

weeks prior to 9/11/01 where he met Wertheimer, and then​ ​claimed on 9/16/01 

that a "hijacker's passport" had been "discovered" - implying that it had 

miraculously got separated from the "hijacker's" clothing or baggage and 

another hundred tons of aircraft debris, survived the Flight 11 fireball, and 

floated down to the ground in almost pristine condition despite being soaked 

with jet fuel. 

Wertheimer - whose father Stef helped to make weapons for Jewish terrorists 

before 1948, and whose family was​ ​listed by Forbes magazine​ as fourth-richest 

in Israel as of March 2011 with a net worth of $4 billion -​ ​was reading​ the 

infamous ​Popular Mechanics​ at the age of 4. In its March 2005 edition, ​Popular 

Mechanics​ ran a​ ​dishonest piece​ purporting to be "debunking the myths" of 

"9/11 conspiracy theories". They did not even make a half-hearted attempt to 

'explain' forensic evidence such as molten steel at the WTC by, for example, 

pretending it was aluminum or lead. They just totally ignored it, dodging the 

issue with the non sequitur that the "​steel frames didn't need to melt​" in order 

for the buildings to collapse, and then attacked straw man claims, e.g. about 

video 'evidence' of​ ​a "pod" on Flight 175​. 

Others attempting to cover for their crooked co-religionists include​ ​Cass 

Sunstein​ and​ ​David Aaronovitch​, the former trying to counter 9/11 truth by 

infiltration, and the latter by mixing in lots of straw men, denying evidence that 

he finds inconvenient and bringing out the old chestnut about how it would have 

needed a lot of conspirators. In other words, Aaronovitch and ​Popular Mechanics 

employ a similar sophistry. 

 

Those who are relatively new to the issues of false-flag terrorism, Zionism and 

the New World Order may be asking themselves if suggestions that Israel did 

9/11 is a "conspiracy theory" or is "anti-Semitic". That disinformation has been 

disseminated by the 9/11 perpetrators, who love to exploit it as a means of 

deflecting attention from themselves, their crimes and deceptions. Any 
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hypothesis about a crime committed by two or more people is a conspiracy 

theory. However, the 9/11 conspiracy theory of "nineteen Arabs with box 

cutters" is (almost) the most ridiculous of all conspiracy theories, since the 

evidence totally refutes it. The perpetrators deliberately float even crazier 

theories such as "aluminum planes could not have penetrated the WTC" and 

"WTC was hit by hologram missiles that look like planes". They are aware that 

the official legend will look quite reasonable in comparison, and 9/11 truth will 

be tarnished by association with garbage such as "no planes at the WTC", "space 

beam weapons destroyed the WTC", and "​nukes destroyed the WTC​". 

The 'evidence' that is supposed to support the official conspiracy theory is 

planted, fake evidence, such as a "hijacker's passport" that was "discovered", or 

an​ ​"Osama confession" video​ that was conveniently "found" amongst all the 

buildings in Jalalabad (population estimated at​ ​roughly 250,000​ as of 1999) in 

occupied Afghanistan within 5 weeks of it allegedly having been made, in which 

the only similarities between the "confessor" and OBL are that both of them 

wore a turban and sported a beard. Or "Osama" audiotapes, when they found it 

too embarrassing to bring out the same old photo each time. And that was long 

after the real​ ​Osama​ bin Laden had​ ​denied responsibility​ for the attacks. Twice, 

that is, even helpfully​ ​suggesting some possible suspects​ the second time. The 

evidence proving the official theory to be false is conspiracy fact, including ten 

years of hard science in which the material evidence now includes not only 

molten iron and evidence of extremely high temperatures (the "smoking gun"), 

but also active thermitic material (the "loaded gun"). Israelis with proven 

foreknowledge, a top Zionist Jew with access to the best Flight Termination 

System for electronically hijacking aircraft via a Command Transmitter System, 

an Israeli Instant Messaging service through which two hours' advance 

knowledge of an attack on the World Trade Center was transmitted, and Jews 

who were friends with four Israeli prime ministers and who took control of the 

WTC lease, and​ ​insured​ the buildings​ ​against terror attacks for billions of dollars​, 
six weeks before the buildings were destroyed in terror attacks, not forgetting to 

insert a clause stating that in the event of a terrorist attack the partners could 

not only collect the insured value of the property, but would also be released 

from all of their obligations under the 99-year lease​. See​ ​9/11 For Reality 

Deniers​ for more. 

As for accusations of anti-Semitism, it just so happens that Jewish criminals are 

at the top of the food chain, and all the credible evidence - as opposed to fake 

evidence such as planted passports and Korans, phony videos and "confessions" 

extracted following waterboarding - demonstrates that ​Jews​, not Muslims, 

masterminded the 9/11 attacks. 

Jews comprise nearly 0.2% of the world population.​ ​The North American Jewish 

Data Bank​ provides details of a study that places the total Jewish population at 

13,428,300 at the beginning of 2010. The​ ​Jewish Virtual Library​ has a more 

concise presentation with a useful set of tables that shows population by 

country. These sources state that the total human population was 6.900 billion 
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as of 2010. So the probability of any given individual being Jewish is about 1 in 

514. As of September 2011, the population of Israel was 7,797,400, and of 

those some 5,874,300 were Jewish. The world population was almost 7 billion by 

then, and so Israelis constitute 1 in 898 of the population, with Israeli Jews 

making up a 1 in 1,192 proportion. As will be shown below, those behind 9/11 

were not only Jews and were not only ​Zionist​ Jews, they were ​rabidly Zionist 

Jews and so part of a much smaller group. 

So we have the five Israeli Jews arrested on the afternoon of 9/11 after three of 

them were seen filming and celebrating almost immediately after the first plane 

impact. The FBI concluded that two of the five - most likely Paul and Sivan 

Kurzberg - were Mossad agents. Even allowing for many thousands of​ ​sayanim​, 
these agents are part of a much smaller set than Israeli Jews. 

Then we have Rabbi Dov Zakheim, who as the former​ ​CEO of SPC International 

had access to world-leading aircraft remote control technology incorporating a 

"​Flight Termination System​" capable of simultaneously taking over a number of 

in-flight aircraft and issuing commands via a "​Command Transmitter System​". 
Zakheim was at SPC on October 31, 1999, around the time when the 9/11 

planners would have wanted to carry out a trial run of electronically hijacking a 

Boeing aircraft. On that date, EgyptAir Flight 990 (a Boeing 767) plunged into 

the Atlantic, killing all 217 on board including​ ​33 Egyptian army officers​. No 

mechanical cause for the crash was ever found, and it was blamed on a​ ​"suicidal 

Muslim" co-pilot​, a claim that was​ ​publicised by the ​New York Times​, which had 

been​ ​under Jewish ownership since 1896​. In September 2000 Zakheim was 

co-signatory to​ ​Rebuilding America's Defenses​, a report published by The Project 

for the New American Century (​PNAC​), which wrote of the advantages of a "​new 

Pearl Harbor​", i.e. a false-flag terrorist act such as the electronic hijacking of 

several aircraft with corresponding controlled demolitions of several high-rises 

that would serve as casus belli for war. In February 2001 Zakheim​ ​was 

nominated by George W. Bush​ to serve as Comptroller at the Pentagon and 

Under Secretary of Defense.​ ​Zakheim was sworn in​ as Pentagon​ ​Comptroller and 

Chief Financial Officer​ for the Department of Defense on May 4. On March 3, 

2000, it had been reported that​ ​the Pentagon's finances were "in disarray"​, and 

that in 1999 the Defense Department's accountants had needed to make almost 

$7 trillion in "adjustments" to try to reconcile bookkeeping discrepancies. They 

could not show receipts for $2.3 trillion of those corrections. There were 

hundreds of computer systems running various military accounts, but these were 

not integrated, and the financial records were not up to accounting standards or 

capable of even facing an audit. 

Thus, at the time Dov Zakheim was nominated for the position as Comptroller in 

charge of the Pentagon accounts, it was well known to potential fraudsters intent 

on stealing hundreds of billions of dollars that a terrorist strike targeting the 

Pentagon's bookkeeping section, destroying computers and documents, and 

killing dozens of accountants, bookkeepers and budget analysts​, would destroy 

any money trail leading back to them. On March 11, 2002, exactly six months 
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after the Pentagon's bookkeeping section was targeted in a terrorist strike, Rabbi 

Dov Zakheim​ ​delivered a commemorative sermon on the Pentagon lawn to 

hundreds of co-religionists from 40 countries​. Chabad​ ​Lubavitch​ rabbis had 

gathered ostensibly to launch the centenary commemoration of their spiritual 

leader, Rabbi Menachem Mendel Schneerson aka The Rebbe, yet​ ​the rabbis sang 

"Oseh Shalom" at 9:38 a.m. at the crash site​, exactly six months after the 

Pentagon had been attacked.​ ​The Rebbe​ was born April 5, not March 11, in 

1902. 

Prior to 9/11/01, Israel already had a well-deserved reputation for staging 

false-flag terrorism​ and a known capability for doing so. On September 10, 

2001, the ​Washington Times​ published details of a study by the Army School of 

Advanced Military Studies (SAMS), which had​ ​this to say of Israel's Mossad​: 
"Wildcard. Ruthless and cunning. Has capability to target U.S. forces and make it 

look like a Palestinian/Arab act." 

Towards the end of July, 2001, two​ ​billionaire​ Jewish real estate developers who 

were friends with four Israeli prime ministers (excluding Yitzhak Rabin who was 

assassinated in 1995) took control of the World Trade Center (WTC) lease, and 

insured​ the buildings​ ​against terror attacks for billions of dollars​, with a clause 

stating that in the event of a terrorist attack, the partners could not only collect 

the insured value of the property, but​ ​would also be released from all of their 

obligations under the 99-year lease​. Larry Silverstein was a friend of​ ​Benjamin 

Netanyahu, Ariel Sharon and Ehud Barak​. Frank​ ​Lowy​, who​ ​fought "in the Jewish 

underground"​, was a friend and business partner of​ ​Ehud Olmert​. On September 

4, 2001, one week prior to the 9/11 attacks, the Zim-American Israeli Shipping 

Co.​ ​moved out of the WTC​, transferring their HQ to Norfolk, Virginia.​ ​Six weeks 

after​ the new controllers had taken over the lease, the WTC was destroyed in 

terror attacks. Uncharacteristically, Silverstein did not breakfast at​ ​the Windows 

on the World restaurant​ on the 106th and 107th floors of the North Tower that 

day, and his two children were also spared as they also did not turn up for work 

at Silverstein Properties. The explanation provided was that Silverstein 

coincidently had​ ​a "dermatologist's appointment"​ on the morning of 9/11/01, 

and his children were "​running late​". 

How many people are friends with three Israeli premiers? Even if six or seven 

thousand, such an exclusive group would be 1 in a million. And Larry Silverstein, 

the front man who took over the WTC lease six weeks before 9/11/01, and didn't 

go to the Windows on the World restaurant on the morning of 9/11/01 although 

he had done so​ ​every other morning since July 26, 2001​, happened to be from 

such a group. 

When​ ​two hours' advance warning​ of an attack on the WTC was transmitted via 

an instant messaging company, Odigo, that had an office in New York, the 

company happened to be Israeli. The Israeli population is the 1 in 898 group. 

However, Odigo's Israeli research and development office just happened to be in 

Herzliya, the location of​ ​the Mossad's headquarters​ and of​ ​Don Radlauer​ who 
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was working to promote the "Arabs did 9/11" legend as early as September 13, 

2001, with a claim that hijacking, steering and navigating Boeing aircraft would 

have been​ ​an "easy" task​ for hijackers. The population of Herzliya was​ ​87,000 at 

the end of 2009​, making this group 1 in 79,300 of the world population. 

Employees of​ ​Goldman Sachs​, the Jewish investment banking firm with 

headquarters in Lower Manhattan close to the former WTC site, were probably 

warned of a terrorist attack even earlier than those on the Odigo buddy list. The 

Sept 14, 2001 edition of Counterpunch reported "Counterpunch has also learned 

that an internal memo was sent around Goldman Sachs in Tokyo on September 

10 advising all employees of a possible terrorist attack. It recommended all 

employees to avoid any American Government buildings". It is unlikely that 

Tokyo employees got a warning on the previous day (when New York local time, 

at 14 hours behind, was probably within a few hours of midnight September 

9th/10th), but New York-based Goldman Sachs workers did not receive advance 

warning. 

The ex-Sayeret Matkal Zionist Jew​ ​Daniel Lewin​ was reputedly on Flight 11, as 

mentioned​ ​above​. The elite commando unit is clearly a very exclusive group. 

The ex-​Sayeret Matkal​ Israeli premier Benjamin Netanyahu wrote in 1995 about 

"militant Islam" bringing down the World Trade Center​, twenty years after he 

earned a B.Sc. degree in architecture from MIT - where he​ ​used the surname 

Nitay​, also having gained an M.Sc. in business management there, in which his 

thesis was on the impact of computers in the newspaper industry and how they 

could enhance newspapers' political power. 

The original plan was to have both Twin Towers collapse at around 10:15, allow 

the operators sufficient time to exit WTC 7, and then have Flight 93 hit WTC 7 at 

around 10:30. The third crash would provide the pretext for the planned WTC 7 

collapse, which was necessary in order to eliminate evidence of the 

remote-control transmitters for controlling Flights 11, 175, and 93, and 

detonating charges in each of the Twin Towers. However, Flight 93, scheduled to 

depart at 8:00, was​ ​delayed because of congestion​ and did not take off until 

8:42. At 9:36, Flight 93 filed a new flight plan to arrive in Washington at 10:28. 

Unfortunately for the Zionists, the US air defenses could not be delayed 

indefinitely, and UA93, was shot down over Shanksville at 10:06. The perps still 

had to demolish WTC 7, but without a "suicide piloted passenger plane" to hand. 

Hence, the official story was forced to assert that the global collapse of WTC 7 

was solely as a result of "fires". 

A detailed analysis of the fires in WTC 1 proves how the fire collapse theorist 

must either hope that no one bothers to do the calculations, or must postulate a 

version of reality which features variable physical and natural law (which is 

precisely what the Holocaustian must do for Poland in 1944). WTC 1, which was 

hit by an aircraft, and where fires burned for 102 minutes before global collapse 
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occurred, offers the best hope for the fire collapse theorist who tries to pose as a 

"scientist". 

Throughout the 100-year history of steel framed high-rise buildings and 

skyscrapers up to September 10, 2001, there had never been even a single 

incidence of fire-induced collapse in the US. According to Ronald Hamburger in 

the Stanford Report, Dec 3, 2001, WTC 7 was the "first major structure in the 

U.S. to collapse because of fire". A report on multiple fatality fires, 1994-1996, 

has no mention of "collapse". And National Institute of Standards and 

Technology (NIST), Building and Fire Research Laboratory (BFRL), Investigation 

of the World Trade Center Disaster reports, "The WTC Towers and WTC 7 are the 

only known cases of total structural collapse in high-rise buildings where fires 

played a significant role." The worldwide statistics for high-rise buildings since 

1970 include only 17 cases of fire-induced collapse, two of these being structural 

steel buildings, and none in the US. Yet on September 11, 2001, three separate 

skyscrapers collapsed in the US, where building codes are more stringent than in 

poorer nations. 

Being generous to the government-backed fire-collapse theory - just before a 

random event occurs the rate of occurrence will tend below the mean; after the 

event it will tend above the mean. Let's suppose 3 collapses in every 100 years 

is the average fire-induced collapse rate to be expected for steel framed 

high-rise buildings in the US (and the fact that the rate remained at zero for so 

long suggests that this is an overestimate). So the rate is one day every 33.333 

years = 1 day every 12,175 days. Hence, the probability for one such collapse to 

occur on any specified day is 1 in 12,175, and the probability for three collapses 

is 1 in 12,175 cubed = 1 in 1.805 trillion. 

For a compartment fire, an allowance must be made for incomplete combustion 

in places, which will reduce the total heat liberated for a given mass of fuel. In 

the case of the WTC fires, both sides of the debate included absurdities. Some 

Zionist press articles claimed that "jet fuel fires melted the steel"; some sceptics 

argued that "oxygen-starved" hydrocarbon fires in buildings could never burn at 

temperatures higher than about 500 C. 

Conditions will range from stoichiometric near the vent side of a flame to fuel 

rich at the smoke side. Let us suppose a linear distribution of oxygen reactant 

over the range stoichiometric (equivalence ratio or "phi" = 1) to half that mass 

of oxygen per unit of fuel (phi = 2), ignoring all cases where the fires are even 

more oxygen starved. [Please refer to "Mathematics of the WTC Fires" sections 

of ​ ​www.takeourworldback.com/911/​ for full details.] From the integral of the 

function, we have a mean equivalence ratio close to phi = 1.386 (the natural log 

of 4). Calculation of the thermochemical equations for wood (a cellulose-lignin 

mix) and kerosene (dodecane) over this linear range of oxygen reactant, and 

averaging, provides a figure of 67 to 68% as the mean efficiency of such a fire. 

http://www.takeourworldback.com/911/
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The analysis computed a calorific value of some 11.43 kJ/g for wood, down from 

the stoichiometric value of 16.74 kJ/g from the equation used: 

0.8C6H10O5 + 0.2C18H24O11 + 8.5O2 + 31.976N2 ===> 8.4CO2 + 6.4H2O + 

31.976N2 + 3563.2 kJ 

and 29.7 kJ/g for dodecane, compared to 44.14 kJ/g in complete combustion 

from: 

C12H26 + 18.5O2 + 69.595N2 ===> 12CO2 + 13H2O + 69.595N2 + 7518.26 

kJ 

These thermochemical equations are both for phi = 1. Apart from setting phi = 2 

as the maximum equivalence ratio, another assumption here is that as oxygen is 

removed from the reactants, CO2 and H2O products decrease in the proportion 

59:41. CO is substituted for lost CO2 product, and H2 for lost H2O. The 

combustion efficiency value (Eff) of around 68% is found to derive from the heat 

released per unit of oxygen according to: 

Eff = 1 - 4.1575 / Hox 

where Hox is the maximum heat released per unit of oxygen (kJ/g) consumed 

for the particular fuel, in complete combustion. A typical value is 13.1 kJ/g. 

Adjustments to the assumption of a 59:41 split make little difference to the 

calculated combustion efficiency. 

The 11.43 kJ/g for wood compares favourably with the 10.75 kJ/g assumed by 

Kawagoe and others such as Magnusson and Thelandersson as the net effective 

heat of combustion of wood in fully developed compartment fires. 

Selecting a floor assumed to have the severest fires, we then take a worst case 

scenario for that particular floor. For the maximum possible energy density, we 

will suppose that the mass burning rate coincidentally just happened to be such 

that the entire floor's combustibles including aircraft fittings were consumed over 

102 minutes, the fire duration from impact until collapse. We also suppose that 

this floor received an above average share of jet fuel, which would have been 

dispersed over several floors. The heat released from the jet fuel is also counted, 

although the pool fire would have burnt up within a few minutes. 

A typical aircraft contains 3,300 to 8,400 kg of combustibles, according to the 

FAA. We shall suppose 7,000 kg over two floors, with 3,500 kg on the model's 

worst-affected floor. 

FEMA's report quotes Culver (1977) stating that typical office-type occupancies 

contain fuel loads (described in terms of the equivalent weight of wood) of 4 to 

12 pounds per square foot, with the mean slightly less than 8. However, NIST's 



reports of June and October 2004 by S. Shyam Sunder state that the typical 

(WTC) floor contained an average of 4 psf of combustible materials. 

The fuel load in the core area was relatively light, with much of this zone taken 

up by service shafts. The remaining space between shafts would have contained 

a limited fuel load, with the great majority of combustible material such as desks 

and workstations being outside the core. Let's suppose there was on average 7 

psf or 34.18 kg/m^2 (close to Culver's geometric mean) outside the core, and 2 

psf or 9.765 kg/m^2 within it. The core area was 137' x 87' out of 208' x 208', 

or 1,107 m^2 out of 4,019 m^2, leaving 2,912 m^2 as the non-core area. 

However, above the floor 78 sky lobby, some 40% of the core space is taken up 

by elevator shafts, stairwells, etc. (It was about 50% in the middle section and 

60% below floor 44; express elevator shafts stopped at each sky lobby.) So the 

core space on the upper floors of the fire zone was effectively 0.6 * 1,107, i.e. 

about 664 m^2. Hence, the combustibles per floor, excluding aircraft debris, are 

34.18 * 2,912 + 9.765 * 664 = 106,016 kg = 116.9 tons, expressed in terms of 

the equivalent weight of wood. 

Averaging over the whole floor including core and shafts space, this works out 

around 5.4 psf which is still above NIST's assumed 4 psf average for a typical 

WTC floor. The NIST figure may well represent the actual weight of 

combustibles, and so would be less than the equivalent weight of wood, given 

that some combustibles have a higher calorific value. Other substances such as 

plastics would exhibit little difference in the heat released per unit of oxygen 

consumed. Since the combustion inefficiency factor associated with fuel rich fires 

derives from the calorific value of the oxygen rather than the fuel, our 

inefficiency factor calculated above at around 0.68 is applicable to a mix of 

various fuels. 

FEMA's report suggests (for WTC 2) 3,000 gallons as a reasonable assumption 

for the jet fuel initially consumed in fireballs, leaving 7,000 gallons. It assumes 

about half of this flowed away, either down elevator shafts or out of the building, 

with approximately 4,000 gallons remaining on the impact floors. It also says, 

"Barring additional information, it is reasonable to assume that an approximately 

similar amount of jet fuel was consumed by fireballs as the aircraft struck WTC 

1". 

We have no quibbles with these assumptions, and will take their figure of 4,000 

gallons dispersed on the impact floors, which would have burned as a pool fire. 

In the model it was supposed that the total area of the pool fire, unevenly 

distributed over several floors, was 2,067 m^2. Given that the mass burning 

rate for free burning pool fires is on the order of 50 grams per square metre per 

second, the minimum burn time assuming an unlimited oxygen supply is given 

by: 

mass of fuel {Kg} / (0.05 * pool fire area {m^2}) = t {secs} 



Jet fuel is around 3.1 kg per gallon, and 3.1 x 4,000 = 12,400 kg of fuel. So we 

have: 

12,400 / (0.05 * 2067) = 120 seconds to burn up (which is why 2067 m^2 was 

selected). As the oxygen is consumed, the mass burning rate is limited to that 

set by the area and height of the vents. It was found that for the 106,016 kg 

(116.9 tons) of office combustibles and 3,500 kg of aircraft combustibles to be 

consumed over 102 minutes (109,516 / 6,120 = 17.9 kg/s mass burning rate), 

and given the vent area, the effective height of the vent had to be slightly 

greater than one 10-foot storey (excluding 2-foot floor-ceiling area). I.e., at the 

impact area some floor space was taken out which raises the height of the 

two-layer zone. Further away, a single floor is a two-layer zone of cooler air at 

the bottom and smoke and hot gases at the top. 

12,400 kg of aviation fuel burning in 120 seconds is a mass burning rate of 103 

kg/s, which is nearly six times greater than the rate for the whole floor's 

combustibles to burn over 102 minutes. A six-storey fire compartment model 

could only sustain about half of this rate (air throughput per floor relates to the 

square root of the effective vent height). So the fuel burning time would be 

somewhat more than two minutes, but not more than a few minutes. 

Nevertheless, we shall add the energy released by the kerosene to that of the 

other combustibles, and include this over the whole 102 minutes which will 

provide the best prospects for a fire-induced global collapse ensuing at the end 

of that period. 

If the fuel is unevenly distributed over several floors, a distribution might, for 

example, have consisted of areas of 100, 300, 400, 500,and 767 square metres. 

We shall take the 767 m^2 for the model's worst affected floor, which gives 

12,400 * 767 / 2,067 = 4,601 kg or 1,484 gallons of kerosene. This floor is also 

assumed to have 106,016 kg of office combustibles, and 3,500 kg of aircraft 

combustibles, totalling 109,516 kg expressed in terms of the equivalent weight 

of wood. 

Allowing for combustion inefficiencies, the effective calorific value of the 

kerosene was some 29.7 MJ/kg, with 11.4 MJ/kg for the wood. 

1484 * 3.1 kg/gallon * 29.7 MJ/kg = 1.37 * 10^11 J  (kerosene) 

+ 109516 * 11.4 = 1.25 * 10^12 J (other combustibles, wood equivalent) 

This gives a total of 1.39 * 10^12 J for the worst floor, including heat which 

flowed out of the building. Of the total, some 60% - i.e. 8.34 * 10^11 J - is 

retained in the building, with the building absorbing the greatest proportion 

when cold. 

For this worst case storey, the kerosene and aircraft combustibles are added to 

the total floor area excluding shafts. The total floor area comprised the non-core 

of 31,345 ft^2 and the 60% of 11,919 ft^2 core space - i.e. 7,151 ft^2, to give 



a total area excluding shafts of 38,496 ft^2 or 3,576 m^2. With the kerosene 

yielding the equivalent of 12,018 kg of wood, 12018 kg / 3576 m^2 is an extra 

3.361 kg/m^2 or 0.688 psf. 3,500 kg of aircraft combustibles adds 0.979 

kg/m^2 or 0.2 psf. So we have: 

Non-core combustibles = 7 + 0.688 + 0.2 = 7.888 psf = 40.8 MJ/ft^2 

Core combustibles = 2 + 0.688 + 0.2 = 2.888 psf = 14.93 MJ/ft^2 

These figures were the basis of computations involving summing the radiant 

heat contributions from each square foot/metre of floor space, as viewed at 

some specified point on the floor. Specifications of structural steel members was 

determined from information in the public domain. Each point source 

contribution computed a radiation view factor and proportion of the heat 

released from combustibles at that point that would be absorbed by a given 

member. Working in square metres did not greatly affect the results. With a 

nearly tenfold difference in computation time for a floor, the final set of results 

worked in square metres of floor space. The final temperatures at 102 minutes 

were predicted for each core column and other members for various proportions 

of fire resistive coating (FRC) remaining or assumed stripped off. 

The above core density of 14.93 MJ/ft^2 was based on lowering the area from 

11,919 to 7,151 ft^2 after allowing for 40% of area being taken up by shafts. 

Rather than determine which points were taken up by shafts, it was easier to 

multiply the energy density by 0.6 and plot all points. The model pretends the 

shafts do not exist to shield the columns, thereby exaggerating absorption. The 

non-core released 1.279 * 10^12 J, with a corresponding 1.068 * 10^11 J from 

the core. In metric, the total points plotted were x and y coordinates 0.5 to 62.5 

which is 63^2 = 3,969 m^2. There were 1,134 core points and 2,835 office area 

points. Thus, the core energy density came to 94.2 MJ/m^2, and the non-core 

was 451 MJ/m^2. 

It was assumed that 40% of the energy flowed out of the building. With a mean 

adiabatic flame temperature of 1,488 C after allowing for 68% combustion 

efficiency with conditions ranging from stoichiometric to fuel rich, actual flame 

temperatures averaging 1,000 C after transmitting heat to surroundings, an 

exiting gases temperature of 669 C, and an average hot gases upper layer 

temperature of 835 C, the total heat transmitted to the building was 6.84 MJ/kg 

of wood equivalent, with another 4.56 MJ/kg vented to the exterior. Of the heat 

transmitted to the building, 4.16 MJ/kg was from the flames and 2.68 MJ/kg 

from hot gas or smoke upper layer. So the program multiplied the above energy 

density figures by 0.6, which took account of contributions from the flames and 

smoke layer. 

For the full results for each core column and accompanying description, see 

www.takeourworldback.com/911/911fires4.htm​. 

http://www.takeourworldback.com/911/911fires4.htm
http://www.takeourworldback.com/911/911fires4.htm


The ongoing research at present suggests that the only real vulnerability would 

have been with the trusses on two floors that were subject to the onslaught of 

impacting debris. In any case, the central area of one floor, up to the core, was 

probably taken out by the initial impact. The effect of the fires, if causing local 

partial floor collapse, would have been small compared to the impact damage. 

This analysis (confirmed by the NIST study) found that it would be necessary to 

totally remove four or five floors - depending on core column temperatures - 

before there would be any possibility of global instability. A partial failure of 

trusses on two floors and partial local floor collapse would not bring down the 

building. 

The original demand : capacity ratios were around 0.4 to 0.5 for the core 

columns, and 0.17 to 0.2 for the perimeter columns. Most core columns were 

aligned with the webs running north-south, so the "Flight 11" debris approaching 

from the north of WTC 1 would have impacted with one side of a flange. The web 

and other flange would have been essentially in the "shadow" of the exposed 

flange, hence protected. Core column 704, one of the weakest and with the web 

running east-west, might have failed on the model's worst case floor, if flying 

debris had stripped all FRC from a side of its web, and if the fire had raged as 

per the worst case scenario detailed above. However, the other columns would 

have remained below 550 C and retained spare capacity even if debris stripped 

FRC from the debris-exposed side. In order to initiate collapse of even a single 

floor, failure of a number of additional columns would be required - a failure 

which would not have occurred. 

WTC 2 collapsed in only 56 minutes; therefore heat absorbed by members would 

have been 55% of the WTC 1 absorption for a given mass burning rate. The WTC 

2 fires were not observed to be 82% more severe than in WTC 1. As for WTC 7, 

it was never hit by a plane, and the FRC would have remained intact. The idea 

that fire could lead to this building collapsing as if in a controlled demolition is as 

ludicrous as the idea that the face of Elvis Presley would appear in a Danish 

pastry. 

Hence, the probability of 1 in 12,175 against each (of three) high-rise collapses 

will be found to be valid; a probability of 1 in 1.805 trillion. 

Evidence that​ ​thermite​ (or to be more precise,​ ​thermate​) was used to demolish 

WTC 1, 2 and 7 includes​ ​numerous reports​ of​ ​molten steel​ or iron found in the 

debris pile of all three skyscrapers,​ ​partially evaporated steel members found in 

the ruins of WTC 7​ , the molten iron observed pouring from the side of WTC 2 in 

the minutes leading up to collapse,​ ​excessive sulfidation of steel members​, and 

dust analysis that found​ ​high barium levels​ ranging from 317 to 3,670 ppm. 

"You were only supposed to cut through the bloody columns - not shoot molten 

iron out the windows in front of the cameras!" (irate arch-villain). 

Hydrocarbon fires do not melt iron or steel​. Although the adiabatic flame 

temperatures are higher than the melting point of iron, such temperatures are 
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not attained because Stefan's law dictates that heat is radiated to the 

environment in proportion with the fourth power of a blackbody radiator's 

absolute temperature. If the gas products temperature was near the adiabatic 

flame temperature, it would radiate heat away, lowering the temperature; if it 

was near to ambient temperature it would be radiating very little and could not 

have gotten so low. Real world fires typically fluctuate around an equilibrium 

temperature that is approximately midway between ambient and the adiabatic 

flame temperature. Typical adiabatic values would be about 2,000 C, but only 

under perfect conditions. As the mixture tends towards fuel-rich in a 

compartment fire, the adiabatic flame temperature decreases, along with the 

typical temperature attained after energy has been lost to heat the building 

structure. The WTC fires would not have averaged much over 600 C. 

According to NIST, 15,400 escaped and 2,159 were killed in the WTC, which is a 

total occupancy of 17,559 at the time of the attacks. Let us suppose as many as 

half arrive after 8:46, which is rather high considering these workers in what 

were some of the world's most prestigious offices were high-fliers rather than 

the type who would amble in in mid-morning. The normal daily occupancy of 

both Towers was more than 50,000. So we have: 

(more than 25,000) - 17,559 = more than 7,441 

...which is certainly consistent with internet reports of Jews being warned not to 

turn up for work that day. However, those with foreknowledge were probably at 

vice president level and above. Others may have been lured away on other 

pretexts. 

After 9/11, the Zionist Mafia and Bush Administration had a phony pretext for 

the attacking and looting of nations that were deemed worthwhile prey. The CIA 

was anxious to invade Afghanistan in order to get back into the opium trade, 

which had been lucrative for them until the Taliban intervened. The Bushes and 

partners hoped to profit from Iraq's oil wealth, from looting its Oil-for-Food fund, 

and from reconstruction contracts. Israel wanted to see its Arab neighbours 

neutered, and maybe even turned into satellite colonies such as the US, UK and 

Germany. Their immediate interest was Iraq, not Afghanistan. The Bush family 

had business links with the bin Ladens, and Osama was selected as the 

arch-villain since he had ailing kidneys and was not expected to survive long. 

But it was easier to link Osama with Afghanistan than Iraq. 

The Mossad's identity theft operations had provided some individuals who could 

be framed as "suspected hijackers". When they turned up alive, the 'explanation' 

provided would be "mistaken identity". Mossad agents would get themselves 

noticed in the run-up to 9/11, pretending to be some of the "Arab hijackers". 

This is the origin of a major inconsistency in the official conspiracy theory: the 

gambling​,​ ​womanizing​,​ ​drinking​, cocaine-​snorting​, "devout" Muslims with such a 

hatred of Western culture that they ​gladly chose to kill themselves and 
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thousands of others so that Zionists had a pretext to invade and​ ​loot​ Muslim 

nations. 

For the criminals, wars were great, since they provided a form of wealth transfer 

from the many to the few. The US taxpayer might stump up hundreds of billions 

of dollars to prosecute a war, and yet the rewards would not amount to much 

more than $9 billion or so from an Oil-for-Food fund and a few treasures from 

museums. Overall, it is a negative-sum game. But those making the profits are 

not those who bear the losses. The financial expenditure is from public funds 

seized from the taxpayer, and the blood price is borne by innocent servicemen 

who have been told they are serving their nation. The profits go straight into the 

private accounts of the war criminals. They have not needed to lay out a cent of 

their own money, which equates to an infinite rate of return; neither have they 

or any of their children had to pay any blood price. 

The Bush Administration and other poodles of Israel were faced with problems in 

supplying a suitable pretext for invading Iraq. They tried to morph Osama into 

Osama-Saddam, but this was not too successful. The absurd "WMD" claims were 

going to take some time. This approach required the forging of documents about 

purchase of yellowcake from Niger, dodgy dossiers including excerpts 

cut-and-pasted from a student's obsolete thesis on the internet and passed off 

as current intelligence information, and claims that weather balloon inflators 

were really "mobile biological weapons laboratories". 

Israel decided to put pressure on the US to speed up its Iraq attack; the 

kingpins were not prepared to wait for four or five years. American Airlines Flight 

587 crashed shortly after take-off in Belle Harbor, New York on November 12, 

2001. Witnesses reported two explosions, and after the second, larger explosion, 

the vertical stabiliser cleanly broke away at the connection to the fuselage as an 

unmarked, complete unit. Then the engines were severed. The official story 

claimed "wake turbulence" as the cause. After all, fires had suddenly gained the 

power to bring down skyscrapers of structural steel treated with Cafco 

Blaze-Shield or Monokote fire resistive coating, where the perimeter columns 

had a demand : capacity ratio of 0.17 to 0.2 with a corresponding 0.4 to 0.5 for 

the core columns. Maybe in this brave new reality, winds might conceivably have 

attained the power to blow aircraft apart! 

In the following months, the US and UK governments worked overtime trying to 

concoct an excuse to invade Iraq. After the invasion, when the WMDs were 

nowhere to be found, there were suggestions that Saddam had hidden them to 

"avoid getting into really deep trouble", or had sent them off to Syria. As the 

WMD lies unravelled, the warmongers had to resort to claiming that the invasion 

- including the excess deaths of around​ ​655,000 Iraqis​ within four years, the 

loss of thousands of the invaders' troops, the destruction of Iraq's infrastructure, 

and the dumping of radioactive waste on its land to be dispersed to a lesser 

extent around the globe - was "a price worth paying" in order to "liberate", and 

"bring democracy to", the Iraqi people. The only 'crime' they could even hope to 
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pin on Saddam was his signing of death warrants for 148 people linked to an 

assassination attempt on him in 1982.​ ​George W Bush personally signed more 

than 150 death warrants​ during his tenure as Governor of Texas, so by the 

previous logic, the US should invade itself to remove Bush (one case where the 

Zionist version of events does not lead to a wholly undesirable conclusion). 

The UK's 'leader', Tony Blair, had always been a gung-ho supporter of the US-led 

invasion of Iraq. The 4 million pounds he received (laundered by purchase of​ ​a 

house in Connaught Square, London​ and​ ​two flats in Bristol​), the probable 

blackmail involving pictures of Cherie Blair "​having her toxins cleaned out​" by 

Carole Caplin​, and possibly of Tony in a compromising position with​ ​Peter 

Mandelson​, and the fact that​ ​Zionists had installed Blair as P.M. in the first place 

(and controlled the opposition!)​ saw to that. But the Zionists wanted to make 

sure that Australia would toe the line, too... 

In July 2003​ ​Dr David Kelly​, a British Ministry of Defence employee, expert in 

biological and chemical warfare and a former UN weapons instructor in Iraq, was 

murdered and a clumsy cover-up was conducted to make it appear like a 

"suicide". Only one-fifth of a tablet of co-proxamol was found in Dr Kelly's 

stomach, and there was little evidence of vomiting. The blood levels of the major 

two components of co-proxamol were no more than one-third of a lethal dose. 

He lost no more than a pint of blood, and probably less, from a single wound to 

an ulnar artery. The ulnar artery, deep in the wrist, is a strange choice for the 

suicidal.​ ​Medical professionals disputed the official inquiry's conclusion that death 

was due to suicide​. Paramedics who were among the first on the scene, at 

Harrowdown Hill woods, attended a press conference and pointed out that​ ​there 

was so little blood at the scene that it was not consistent with a death from a 

severed artery​. With more than fifteen years' experience of attending attempted 

suicides, they would have expected to see much more blood. In one case, blood 

had spurted high enough to hit the ceiling but the guy had survived. 

The killers​ ​injected a lethal mix - probably of co-proxamol and succinylcholine - 

into his wrist​, with the incision to the ulnar artery doubly serving to conceal the 

puncture wound and promote the "suicide" myth for the uninformed. The 

attempt to force a large number of co-proxamol tablets down into his stomach 

was badly bodged, with Kelly dying too quickly for the assassins. Lord Hutton, a 

government yes-man, carried out an 'inquiry' with a predetermined conclusion: 

the government were right, and the BBC were wrong to have attempted to cast 

any doubt on Blair's case for war with Iraq. In fact, the hapless Dr Kelly, who 

had debunked the government's claims that​ ​Iraqi hydrogen artillery balloon 

inflators were "mobile bio-weapons labs"​, was murdered so that the Blair regime 

could maintain the fiction that they did not lie to take Britain into an illegal war. 

With David Kelly not around to contradict the official version of events, the 

government could blame the intelligence rather than its handling of it. 

After the Iraq war was in progress (and even claimed to be almost over), there 

were a number of other Mossad hits, with the relevant satellite state government 
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attempting to claim bombings as the work of an appropriate scapegoat deemed 

acceptable to both parties. The favourite choice was "al Qaeda" or "Muslim 

suicide bombers". 

The Madrid train bombings of March 11, 2004 ("3/11"), was another Israeli black 

op. With ten coordinated bombs on four trains, at least 191 were killed and up to 

2,050 wounded. The authorities tried to concoct a hoax about "bombs in 

rucksacks"; evidence from the blast damage showed that this was a typical 

Mossad multiple train bombs operation (to be repeated in London around sixteen 

months later). 

Debris from the floor of the carriages was embedded in the ceilings. The 

military-grade high-order explosives - in greater quantity than could be carried 

in rucksacks by ten bearded Muslim gentlemen - were fitted to the bottom of the 

carriages the previous night, as the trains were in the overnight rail yards. A 

major intelligence service - with decades of experience in deception, computer 

hacking skills, and access to diplomatic privileges - could have gained access to 

these yards, and also obtained detailed information on rolling stock movements 

from the computer network. A group of angry Muslims or home-grown 

separatists could not have obtained the necessary security clearance, or 

smuggled the explosives in without detection. 

The official story originally held that the bombers were "ETA", this was then 

changed to "al Qaeda". Then, in March 2006, the authorities admitted that there 

was no evidence whatsoever of an al Qaeda link. Given that Israel's Mossad and 

al Qaeda are one and the same thing, that is not literally true, but at least the 

deceivers were forced to admit that their fake al Qaeda story had fallen apart. 

The key to this is in the timing. At first sight, Israel did not appear to have a 

motive to target Spain. PM​ ​Jose Maria Aznar​ had carried out the Zionist Mafia's 

orders, after a secret deal had been struck at the​ ​Azores summit of March 2003​. 
Ostensibly, the summit was a last-minute attempt to agree a new UN resolution 

in order to avert war over the crisis of Iraq's "WMDs"; in actuality it was about 

how much would be paid into whose secret accounts and how much of their 

military would be offered up as Israel's proxy army. Spain had contributed some 

1300 soldiers for the invasion of Iraq. 

March 11, 2004 was exactly 30 months after the 9/11 attacks. Moreover, it was 

912 days after 9/11; i.e., there were 911 intervening days between the two 

dates. With the US elections due later that year, Israel had decided to conduct 

an experiment in order to test the effect of terror attacks on an incumbent's 

popularity. Just three days after 3/11, Spain was due to hold elections. If Aznar 

had been re-elected, then the US would have seen another attack in the fall in 

an attempt to boost Bush's poll ratings. Aznar deserved to be thrown out of 

office for his betrayal of the Spanish people in signing up to Israel's war on Iraq, 
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but the Madrid bombings were not his fault. In the event, Aznar lost the election, 

and so the US was spared another attack for the time being. 

Zionists have a fixation with numerology; 3/11 and its 911 intervening days was 

the obvious choice for the timing of the experiment. The location of 3/11 was 

determined by the timing of Spain's election. The Bali 2002 bombings, although 

not proven to be a Mossad operation, occurred exactly one year, one month and 

one day after 9/11. Subsequent Zionist attacks included Jordan (November 9, 

2005 which is 9/11 in Israeli and European calendars), and Sharm El-Sheikh 

(July 23, 2005 which is 1,411 days after 9/11). The second half of 2006 included 

the five-year anniversary of 9/11, and December 5 which was 1,911 days after 

9/11 (or December 6 for 1,911 intervening days). So if any countries are 

planning elections within a few days of these dates, they would be well advised 

to postpone them. 

Zionists wanted to see Bush re-elected in the 2004 US presidential election. Of 

course, the idea that a dry drunk with an inane fascination for watching small 

animals explode, and lacking either a reasonable intellect or even the basic 

motor skills to swallow a pretzel or ride a tricycle or bicycle, is actually the 

architect of US foreign policy is akin to supposing that data manipulation within a 

computer is carried out not by the CPU, but by a tiny nut within the assembly. 

Israel gives its orders to the likes of Cheney, Rumsfeld, Rice and Co via the 

neocon intermediaries. 

There were parallels between the US election and the UK general election of May 

2005. Both had suitable Zionist puppets to play the role of a "leader", in reality 

nothing more than a front for Israel. The opposition candidates were both Jews 

who had changed their name - John Kerry (Kohn) and Michael Howard (Hecht). 

Both of these opposition candidates were desperately trying their level best to 

lose. Another little scam for the US elections was to concoct a video purporting 

to be of Osama bin Laden - who had died at least two years ago - in the hope 

that this might frighten some into voting for Bush as the man who would 

"protect" them. 

In the UK election the Zionists' plan worked, and Blair was re-elected. But Dubya 

was so unpopular and so incompetent that Kerry's kid gloves strategy and the 

Osama hoax would not have prevented Kerry from winning. Hence, it was 

necessary to fiddle the results by a few additional percentage points. The various 

chicanery included electronic voting machines, such as the Diebold optical 

scanner machines, with results sent to a central tabulator that was just a 

Windows-based PC. Walden O'Dell, Chief Executive of Diebold, had written to 

100 wealthy Republican supporters in a fund-raising exercise: "I am committed 

to helping Ohio deliver its electoral votes to the president next year". Either the 

voting machines had secretly been programmed to bias the results by several 

points in favour of Bush, or hackers manipulated data in the central tabulators. 



There were significant discrepancies between exit polls, which predicted a win for 

Kerry, and the official results. Where a paper trail existed, the divergence 

between exit polls and results was within the expected statistical margin of 

error. In contrast, results from the voting machines had consistently swung 

towards Bush. The National Election Data Archive demonstrated that the odds of 

these discrepancies occurring due to chance ranged from 1 in 17,800 down to 1 

in 867,205,500. Dr Stephen Freeman of the University of Pennsylvania 

calculated the odds at 250 million to one against​ for just three of the major 

swing states - Florida, Ohio and Pennsylvania - to swing as far as they did from 

their exit polls. Other tricks included the barring of foreign observers, phony 

letters telling people they could not vote, and obstruction of minority groups 

from voting. Bizarre consequences included instances where there were more 

votes cast than voters. Historically, the incumbent had never managed a 

last-minute surge. 

The machine-induced swing in Ohio was sufficient for Bush to steal the election. 

As if all was normal, the US then had the audacity to continue lecturing other 

countries about holding free and fair elections, and of the importance of 

"democracy" (one of the pretexts for the invasion of Iraq)! 

With Bush and Blair both safely re-elected and working to hasten the move to a 

global dictatorship, the second half of 2005 featured an above average number 

of Israeli false-flag terror operations. The Zionist cabal's protection racket 

continued to operate in similar vein to that of previous decades, albeit now 

flushed with success over its nuclear-armed subs, accomplishment of Silverstein 

and the Mossad's billion-dollar WTC demolition insurance fraud, Zakheim's 

trillion-dollar Pentagon embezzlement, and the neocons' recruiting of puppet 

states' armed forces as Israel's proxy army for the war on Iraq. This super-Mafia 

was baying at the scent of the imminent despotism. 

In general, terror attacks - to be blamed on some suitable scapegoat that would 

provide a pretext for stripping the people of their human rights and hard-won 

freedoms - were conducive to the Zionist Mafia's programme for world 

dictatorship. Specifically, when a nation did something to displease its 

government's Mafia masters, it would be punished with a terror attack. The 

nation's political leadership would be racked with guilt, feeling partly responsible 

for the casualties, but would be forced to cover up the Mafia's crimes by going 

along with the cover story - e.g. of "Muslim suicide bombers", or "ETA", or 

"Chechen insurgents", etc. 

July 7, 2005 (​the "7/7 attacks"​), was the date of the UK's worst terrorist atrocity 

since Pan Am 103 exploded in the skies over​ ​Lockerbie​, Scotland, in December 

1988. A bomb in each of three London Underground trains and another on a 

London bus left 56 dead and about 700 injured. 

British Gas had recently discovered significant offshore gas fields in Palestinian 

Authority areas off the Gaza coast. Israel did not express any interest in this 
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gas, even though gas from Egypt was more expensive. Ariel Sharon preferred to 

deal with Egypt for political reasons, fearing that a $150+ million annual cash 

flow to the Palestinians would be used to bankroll "terrorism" - i.e. resistance to 

the occupation - against Israel. 

On June 30, Israeli and Egyptian officials signed a $2.5 billion deal for the sale of 

Egyptian natural gas to Israel over the next 15 years, with options for a further 

5 years. Israel then found out that Egypt and British Gas had​ ​struck a secret 

deal behind her back​, whereby Palestinian gas would be sold to Egypt. 

Effectively, Israel would be purchasing from Palestine after all, and having to pay 

a premium price into the bargain. Hence, the Zionist Mafia decided to whack 

Britain and Egypt. A series of​ ​bombings in Sharm El-Sheikh​ on July 23 killed 88 

and wounded over 150 - Egypt's deadliest terror attack in history. Most 

casualties were Egyptians. 11 Britons died, and an Israeli Arab. There were​ ​no 

Jewish casualties, and the attack was clearly not directed against Israeli Jews​. 

The initial news reports on 7/7, London's worst bomb attack since World War 

Two, stated that Israel's (then) Finance Minister and former Prime Minister 

Binyamin "Bibi"​ ​Netanyahu was warned in advance​ of the explosions. 

Netanyahu, scheduled to speak at the 4th annual Tel Aviv Stock Exchange 

(TASE) Investors Conference in the Great Eastern Hotel, arrived in London on 

Wednesday night and was staying at a Mayfair hotel. Original reports stated that 

warnings before the attacks prompted him to remain in his hotel room, and 

revised accounts held that he was "on his way to the hotel" when he was warned 

"after the first explosion". In 1995, Netanyahu had written about​ ​"militant Islam" 

bringing down the World Trade Center​. In 1996 he was "unexpectedly"​ ​elected 

Israeli Prime Minister​ in the wake of​ ​a wave of so-called "suicide bombings"​. 
Netanyahu providing advice on combating terror is rather like Dracula visiting 

hospitals with tips on maintaining blood banks, or Robert Maxwell as a pension 

funds management consultant specialising in fraud prevention. 

It was necessary to explain why Netanyahu did not show up at the TASE 

conference (which was merely a cover for his being in London to direct the 

bombing attacks). The original plan (of Israel and the mainstream media) was to 

report that Scotland Yard warned the security officer at the Israeli Embassy who 

in turn warned Netanyahu, a few minutes in advance of multiple simultaneous 

explosions on the London Underground, which were followed by a bus bombing. 

The simultaneity of the Tube train bombings would "prove" that the attack had 

"all the hallmarks of al Qaeda". When Scotland Yard refused to play along, Israel 

could not admit foreknowledge, leaving the original "warned by Scotland Yard 

before the attacks" claim dead in the water. 

Following negotiations, the UK authorities did agree to a minor rewriting of the 

script. A version where the three Tube explosions were spread over a period of 

26 minutes, from 08:51 to 09:17, allowed the Netanyahu warning story to be 

revised to "after the first explosion". With several detonations occurring after the 

warning, the decision to avoid the conference would have been vindicated. It 
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was hoped that the warning story would be forgotten two days later, by which 

time the simultaneous Tube explosions account would be resurrected. 

Unfortunately, the new improved script still incriminated Israel. Until the bus 

bombing, almost an hour after the attack began, the British police believed that 

the incidents were related to "power surges" rather than bombs. In fact, the 

explosions caused power surges after rails were shorted out by metal debris. 

A former head of the Mossad, Efraim Halevi, wrote a piece about the​ ​London 

"multiple simultaneous" bombings​ in the July 7 online edition of the Jerusalem 

Post. But if the official story is correct, if Israel is innocent, and if Israeli-UK 

negotiations on the warning story did not take place as above, then Halevi could 

not have known that the explosions were simultaneous, two days before the 

London police knew. Clearly, most of the article was pre-written, and Halevi 

forgot to revise the paragraph about simultaneity on the day. 

There was also a report in the German newspaper, Bild am Sonntag, that the 

Mossad office in London received advance notice of the attacks, but only six 

minutes before the first blast. In fact, they would have known days earlier. But if 

their story were true, it would be an extraordinary coincidence that they learned 

of the attacks just in time to warn Netanyahu, but too late to warn anyone else. 

The oil deal double-cross motive for whacking the UK and Egypt with their 

biggest terror attacks for at least 17 years, the Netanyahu warning fiasco, 

Halevi's prior knowledge that the explosions were simultaneous, and the 

admission of the Mossad London cell's prior knowledge are all events that are 

correlated with the truth-value of Israel's guilt. 

Another interesting test is the nationality of the company that was selected by 

Metronet Rail to provide a "networked video solution" for installation in the entire 

London Underground. The company is​ ​Verint Systems​, previously known as 

Comverse Infosys (before February 1, 2002), and is a subsidiary of Israel's 

Comverse Technology​. The Israeli security company's control of the software 

and computers involved in Verint Systems' "networked video solution" enabled 

multiple 'malfunctions' to occur at the very times and places that a Mossad 

operation was in progress. Hence, they had a camera-free window of opportunity 

to install the 7/7 bombs. The Zionist Mafia's massive spy network, and puppet 

"leaders" of government and police etc who are either bribed, blackmailed, or 

brainwashed Masons, provided them with the means and the opportunity. 

Information that surfaced at the end of August 2005 dealt​ ​another fatal blow to 

the official 7/7 attacks theory​. Police claimed that four "Muslim suicide bombers" 

were filmed at Luton station at 7:22 and took the 7:40 Thameslink train to 

King's Cross, where they were filmed at 8:26. However,​ ​the relevant trains did 

not run to schedule on July 7​, due to problems with the overhead lines in the Mill 

Hill area of North London, between Luton and King's Cross. Thameslink's 7:40, 

http://www.informationclearinghouse.info/article9410.htm
http://www.informationclearinghouse.info/article9410.htm
http://www.informationclearinghouse.info/article9410.htm
http://www.verint.com/corporate
http://www.verint.com/corporate
http://www.comverse.com/executive_profiles
http://www.comverse.com/executive_profiles
http://iraqwar.mirror-world.ru/article/61251
http://iraqwar.mirror-world.ru/article/61251
http://iraqwar.mirror-world.ru/article/61251
http://www.financialoutrage.org.uk/thameslink_database1.htm
http://www.financialoutrage.org.uk/thameslink_database1.htm
http://www.financialoutrage.org.uk/thameslink_database1.htm


7:46 and 7:56 trains were cancelled, and others were delayed (arrival at King's 

Cross but not departure from Luton) by up to 35 minutes. 

The 7:24 departed Luton at 7:25. Independent trials have shown that it takes 

over three minutes to walk up the steps to the ticket office and down to the 

platform. In the image of Hasib Hussain on the stairs, he is not running. For the 

official theory to have even a snowball in hell's chance, the "bombers" would 

have had to have bought tickets in advance, they would not have needed to 

queue at the station, almost immediately upon entering the station (just after 

the almost stationary Hasib was filmed) a Tannoy announcement must have 

informed them that their train was about to depart from the relevant platform, 

and they must have immediately started to run for the train. But if a quartet of 

Muslim guys with bulky rucksacks were rushing up and down stairs to catch their 

train, there should have been witnesses. And the "suspects" would not have 

jeopardised the mission by sprinting like Linford Christie to catch a particular 

train whilst carrying bulky rucksacks containing ten pounds of shock-sensitive 

high explosives. The official Thameslink summer timetable shows trains running 

every six minutes on average, from 07:00 to 08:00 on weekdays. It was not 

until about 07:40 that the advertised trains on the screens began to be 

cancelled, and those arriving at the station at 07:22 would have been unaware 

of delays at Mill Hill. 

The 7:30 did not arrive at King's Cross until 8:39 (35 minutes late). In this 

event, the 8:26 CCTV capture is patently impossible, and it is most improbable 

that all three Tube bombers would have reached the explosion sites by 8:50. 

Subsequent trains all arrived later than 8:39. An eyewitness has confirmed that 

no King's Cross trains left Luton between 7:25 and 7:56, apart from the 7:30 at 

7:42 from Platform 4. 

Clearly, those who concocted the frame-up merely referred to the Thameslink 

summer train timetable, rather than the actual times on the day. Just as the 

official theory was holed below the waterline and it was starting to look as if Sir 

Ian Blair would be facing grave criminal charges and Tony Blair an impeachment, 

a ludicrous heavily dubbed and edited video was released, purportedly of one of 

the 7/7 "suicide bombers". The look-alike actor could not mimic a Yorkshire 

accent, so had to mime along to a Yorkshire-bred narrator, with the audio and 

video out of sync by an ever-changing interval. This practice had also been 

employed in the "Nick Berg beheading" video, as the actor playing the part of a 

ruthless Arab terrorist could not convincingly speak Arabic. 

The movements of Rudi Giuliani - the former New York mayor who played a key 

role in 9/11 - are interesting, to say the least. On July 6, he happened to be 

speaking at Harrogate, North Yorkshire, which is within some 20 miles of the 

south Leeds areas of West Yorkshire where most of the 7/7 "suspects" lived. 

Leeds is about 190 miles from London. As the Tube bombs detonated on July 7, 

he was just yards from Liverpool Street station, having breakfast at the Great 

Eastern Hotel, where Netanyahu was due to address the TASE conference to 



promote investment in Israel. Giuliani's Yorkshire role could have included 

planting peroxide-based explosive material in the Leeds apartment rented by the 

Egyptian biochemist, whom the UK authorities unsuccessfully attempted to 

frame, and buying plastic tubs from a Leeds garden centre to obtain a receipt 

which could then be "found" in pristine condition at one of the blast sites. 

Israel played no part in the "failed bombs plot" of London, July 21. The simplest 

theory, consistent with the evidence, limits the plot to four people. Four plucky 

friends, loyal to their own kith and kin, felt obliged to make a political protest in 

relation to the carnage of the illegal Iraq war. The plan neither involved suicide 

nor any injuries, since the devices were designed to be all bark and no bite. 

However, the July 21 operators could have been entrapped and directed by MI5 

agents. Either way, as the 7/7 frame-up began to fall apart - even with the aid 

of phony videos and Orwellian revisions such as "traces of TATP / HMTD", "no 

timers", and "bombs in rucksacks" - the UK Government would benefit from a 

second wave of "failed" bombings that would boost its case for measures such as 

compulsory biometric ID cards and 90-day detentions without trial. The 

Government would attempt to promote 21/7 as part of its ludicrous conspiracy 

theory of thousands of evil Muslims bent on world domination. 

One of the interesting things about TATP (triacetone triperoxide or​ ​acetone 

peroxide​) is that it leads to an​ ​entropic explosion​ which​ ​creates very little heat​. 
When it detonates, each solid state molecule very rapidly converts to four 

gaseous phase molecules, with the expansion proceeding at over 5,000 m/s. The 

reaction is feasible (consistent with the second law of thermodynamics, whereby 

a "forward arrow of time" points towards increasing entropy or disorder) not 

because of heat transferred to the surroundings, but because the products have 

much more entropy than the reactant. Many London 7/7 bomb victims, e.g. 

Danny Biddle​, suffered burns in addition to blast injuries. Eyewitnesses reported 

flashes of bright light. Flashes and burns are​ ​not consistent with peroxide-based 

entropic explosions​. Hence, the early reports of military grade RDX or similar 

were correct, and the later claims of TATP were false. 

In 9/11, a main concern of the operators was to make it appear as if there really 

were "Muslim terrorists". If the Muslims could be seen drinking, gambling, in 

strip bars, etc, all well and good - it would just be hoped that few would notice 

the inconsistencies. Similarly, the UK government's overriding priority was to 

make it appear as if hundreds of crazed Muslims were bent on destroying British 

society. The negative publicity arising from the "accidental" shooting of Jean 

Charles de Menezes, a Brazilian electrician (with eleven bullets at point blank 

range - seven shots to the head, one to the shoulder, and three bullets totally 

missing to become lodged in the carriage) was considered to be outweighed by 

the considerable promotion and reinforcement that this would provide for the 

"suicide bomber" hoax. 
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The assassins would have known full well that there was zero chance of an 

explosion; with four bullets missing the head there would have been a good 

chance of detonating shock sensitive explosives in a "suicide vest". Mr de 

Menezes was allowed to get on the train so that police could seize videotapes or 

discs, bringing them back later and claiming that there was "nothing on them"; 

the system must have been "not working". A suitable large magnet, heater, or 

hammer would have done the trick. Any witnesses who seemed as if they might 

speak out would be warned to stay out of it. 

The 7/7 planners had to select committed Muslims as patsies. The UK's Office for 

National Statistics (ONS) is responsible for the​ ​decennial Census​, which​ ​included 

religion for the first time in 2001​. For each individual in a household, religion 

was an optional question, although 92.29% volunteered this information. Other 

questions such as ethnicity were compulsory. 2001 was also the first Census 

where the main scanning and capture services were contracted out. The external 

service provider was Lockheed Martin, the world's largest defense contractor 

with links to the US DoD and Homeland Security. 

Government agencies could readily obtain lists of known Muslims. Foreign 

operatives could have breached security at the time of data capture, or more 

recently by infiltrating ONS, hacking their database, providing IT services 

(potential suppliers approach the Procurement office in Newport, South Wales), 

or even being supplied by Lockheed Martin or the Pentagon. A select statement 

around July 1st may have specified four columns rather like "Leeds" + "Muslim" 

+ "male" + "born 1974 to 1987". Three of the 7/7 "bombers" grew up in 

Beeston, Leeds. Mohammed Khan only moved to Dewsbury very recently and 

would have been within the Leeds Authority in 2001. The fourth, the Jamaican, 

was an enthusiastic Islam convert in 2001, so may well have declared as such in 

the April 29 Census. 

Bali was hit by another​ ​Zionist terror strike on October 1, 2005​, a few days after 

suggestions that Australia could be moving 450 troops from Iraq. Fortunately, 

the 2005 attacks were not on the same scale as the 2002 bombings. But at least 

20 were killed and over 100 injured. Bombs had been planted at Jimbaran Bay 

and Kuta; some were buried in sand and some were hidden under tables. Three 

bombs, packed with pellets and ball bearings, were detonated remotely by 

mobile phone. The authorities hastily shut down the local mobile network. Three 

unexploded bombs were then discovered, having failed to go off as a result. 

Various cover stories were floated in which the attacks were said to have been 

carried out by the ubiquitous Muslim suicide bomber. The first claim was that 

there had been three suicide bombers with backpacks containing 

manually-triggered bombs, and another three unexploded bombs that were to 

have been detonated remotely by mobile phone. But if the "Muslims" had the 

technical capability for remote mobile detonation, it would not make sense to 

needlessly sacrifice three of their own simply to save the cost of another three 

mobile phones. The authorities soon saw how ridiculous this story was, and 
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wheeled out a Mk II version which attempted to deny the earlier reports of 

unexploded bombs. 

But the fact of the unexploded bombs could not be suppressed, and the police 

were forced to abandon Mk II for a Mk III revision. The third version of the 

official story held that, although there were three pre-installed 

remotely-detonated bombs that failed to go off after the mobile network was 

shut down, the other three bombs had been in backpacks carried by suicide 

bombers, but had been triggered remotely just in case the "bombers" had a last 

minute change of mind. This theory was even worse than the Mk I version - if 

the three suicide bombers had placed their backpacks under a table and got out 

quickly they could have reported "installation complete" to the remote operatives 

and then lived to fight another day. Now the Muslim planners had sacrificed 

three of their own without even saving the price of three mobile phones. A better 

theory would be that Mossad planners sacrificed drugged or coerced Muslim 

carriers; an even better, simpler theory is that six bombs were pre-installed and 

three failed to detonate after the authorities hastily shut down the phone 

network. 

As always, avoidance of internal inconsistency has never been the forte of the 

Zionist-employed conspiracy theorist. The main priority was to push the theme 

of "Muslim suicide bombers", and to this end the slippery police chief Pastika and 

the dodgy anti-terror official Major General Mbai released pictures of three 

heads, supposedly of the "bombers". However, the heads were almost in perfect 

condition, give or take the odd bruise, after allegedly being in close proximity to 

an exploding bomb that had been packed with shrapnel. That is impossible with 

a TNT detonation capable of some 4,000 psi overpressure at very close range. 

Mbai said, "Their faces are normal; their heads have been cut off". Yes, after 

being ordered to "make it look like a suicide bombing", three hapless men in 

custody had been beaten up and their heads cut off and planted for subsequent 

"discovery". 

Israel ordered the Mossad to bomb​ ​three hotels in Amman, Jordan on November 

9, 2005​, killing 60 and injuring 115. The motive was that Jordan's King Abdullah 

II had just announced his willingness to mediate between the US and Syria, as 

war would benefit neither Jordan nor Syria. Since the fomenting of hatred, 

division and conflict is the cornerstone of the ex-Khazar tribe's long-term 

strategy, Zionist Jews need peace like they need a hole in the head. Hence, 

peace activists are regularly discouraged by being abducted in Iraq, shot or 

bulldozed in Palestine, and frequently assassinated. So Israel decided to teach 

the Jordanian leadership a lesson. 

As in previous attacks such as the WTC 9/11 and London 7/7, Jews were warned 

and evacuated in advance of the Amman bombings, and Israel tried to revise 

history afterwards by denying any foreknowledge or evacuation. Independent 

corroboration of the Jews' evacuation was provided by a Los Angeles Times 
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report, with confirmation by a former senior Israeli counter-terrorism official. 

The Mossad also had a specific target - a head of Palestinian military intelligence. 

There were no Jewish casualties. Most of the dead were Jordanian Sunni 

Muslims; two Israeli casualties were both Arabs. Five Palestinians died including 

Major-General Bashir Nafeh, the head of military intelligence in the West Bank. 

The Zionist fictional account of the Jordan bombings featured Muslim suicide 

bombers. At the Radisson hotel, the blast was known to have emanated from a 

bomb placed in a false ceiling. When they could not cover up the fact of the 

ceiling bomb detonation, the Zionist media claimed that there really had been an 

"al Qaeda" suicide bomber, but there just happened to have been another bomb 

in the ceiling at the same time, placed by someone else. (In June 2006, Israel 

attempted a similar excuse after it shelled a Gaza beach​, wiping out seven 

members of a picnicking 10 year old girl's family and badly maiming twenty 

others.) A CIA or Mossad audiotape appeared on the internet with "Abu Musab 

al-Zarqawi" claiming that the Muslim wedding party at the Radisson was not the 

target, but because of the "other" bomb the roof had unfortunately collapsed 

onto the wedding hall. 

The absurd Zionist version of events had bungling Sunni Muslim terrorists, failing 

to target a single Jew and killing mostly Sunni Muslims, as opposed to the reality 

of Jews having killed Arabs. But after rounding up 120 to 200 "suspects", the 

authorities persuaded a woman to confess (probably after threats of rape or 

torture) to being a failed suicide bomber. 

The second half of 2005 included​ ​a suppression of free speech​ in countries that 

were only too pleased to​ ​stir up trouble with insulting cartoons​ of Islam's 

prophet Mohammed, and citing free speech as justification. The Zionist 

"Holocaust" hoax was atrophying at an ever-increasing rate, due to diligent 

efforts by historians, chemists, execution science experts, etc, and the growth of 

the internet. In February of 2003 Ernst Zundel, an artist and​ ​peaceable dissident 

who had questioned the official account of WWII, had been abducted from his 

home in Tennessee, USA on bogus immigration charges. He was taken to 

Canada where he had resided for 42 years, and held for over two years in 

solitary confinement without even being allowed to hear the evidence against 

him, or details of the accusations or the witnesses. In March 2005 he was finally 

deported to Germany, and charged with "inciting racial hatred". As of December 

2006, the trial continues, albeit with frequent adjournments. 

In August 2005 a Belgian historian,​ ​Siegfried Verbeke​, was arrested in the 

Netherlands on "internet speech crime" charges. He was later extradited to 

Germany, and released after nine months' imprisonment in May 2006.​ ​Belgium 

then jailed him again for twelve months​, over a conviction from two years ago. 

In October 2005​ ​Germar Rudolf​, a chemistry expert, was arrested and held in a 

prison some 50 miles from Chicago. Rudolf had proved that the walls of the tiny 

delousing rooms at Auschwitz had high cyanide concentrations whilst the large 

http://www.guardian.co.uk/israel/Story/0,,1799558,00.html
http://www.guardian.co.uk/israel/Story/0,,1799558,00.html
http://www.takeourworldback.com/short/rudolfarrested.htm
http://www.takeourworldback.com/short/rudolfarrested.htm
http://www.takeourworldback.com/short/cartoons.htm
http://www.takeourworldback.com/short/cartoons.htm
http://www.revisionists.com/zundel/letters.html
http://www.revisionists.com/zundel/letters.html
http://www.adelaideinstitute.org/Dissenters1/Verbeke/verbeke.htm
http://www.adelaideinstitute.org/Dissenters1/Verbeke/verbeke.htm
http://www.fpp.co.uk/online/06/12/Verbeke_arrest_4.html
http://www.fpp.co.uk/online/06/12/Verbeke_arrest_4.html
http://www.fpp.co.uk/online/06/12/Verbeke_arrest_4.html
http://www.adelaideinstitute.org/Dissenters1/Rudolf/Rudolf.htm
http://www.adelaideinstitute.org/Dissenters1/Rudolf/Rudolf.htm


alleged "gas chambers" rooms had zero or negligible cyanide content, thereby 

playing a major role in debunking the hoax that was created in order to provide 

the Zionist Mafia with its very own sovereign state. In November 2005, Rudolf 

was deported to Germany to face trial for "holocaust denial". His trial 

commenced in November 2006. 

In November 2005 the British historian, David Irving, 67, was arrested in Austria 

for speeches he had delivered in that country back in 1989. In February 2006 he 

was sentenced to three years' imprisonment. He was​ ​released December 21, 

2006​ after the sentence was reduced on appeal, after serving 400 days in 

solitary confinement. 

February 2006 featured​ ​a major Mossad operation against Egypt​, leading to 

great loss of life. Contact with the al-Salam Boccaccio '98 Egyptian ferry was lost 

around 11 p.m. local time on February 2. A fire was known to have broken out 

on the car deck. Ahmed Mohamed Ahmed, a maintenance crew member who 

helped with the firefighting, used sea water pumped into the ship through hoses. 

Ahmed said that the fire would go out but revive, and "We couldn't figure out the 

cause". The drainage pumps were not working properly, and sea water from the 

firefighting collected in the hull. The ferry soon started to list; after a couple of 

hours the list became severe, and the ship sank about ten minutes later. Around 

400 were rescued but about 1,000 were killed. On February 6, mass protests 

included the ransacking of the office of the ferry's Egyptian owners. 

The Mossad's operation would have consisted of driving cars or trucks loaded 

with phosphorus and possibly magnesium onto the car deck, sabotage of the 

drainage pumps, and installation of a small incendiary for ignition. They had 

previously employed phosphorus for attacks on Egypt back in July 1954, in the 

Lavon Affair. Three months prior to the ferry sinking, Maged Abdelfattah, Egypt's 

Permanent Representative at the UN, had​ ​expressed reservations about the 

wording of Israel's resolution​ to designate January 27 as an "annual 

International Day of Commemoration in memory of the victims of the 

Holocaust", and asked why crimes against Christians and Muslims were not 

similarly recognized and remembered. Then around January 30, 2006,​ ​the 

Egyptian Parliament unanimously rejected Israel's call to observe the January 27 

Memorial Day​. The Mossad enforcers' hit followed within a few days. 

In April 2006, triple blasts hit the Sinai resort of Dahab, formerly a Bedouin 

fishing village. At least 18 were killed, most of whom were Egyptians. No Israelis 

were killed, but one was believed to be among the scores of injured. Credible 

reports said that the bombs contained​ ​gunpowder and nails, and were fitted with 

timers​. The​ ​Mossad are prime suspects​; a former Deputy Head of Egyptian 

Domestic Security Agency stated that Israel was very possibly behind the attack, 

since​ ​Egyptians were targeted and Israelis had received advance warnings to 

stay away​. At the time of the attacks, most of the more than 10,000 Israelis who 

had flocked to the eastern Sinai during the previous week's Passover (Pesach) 

festival​ ​had returned home​. In contrast, hotels would have been full of Egyptians 
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taking a break to coincide with the​ ​Shem al-Nessim​ spring festival which 

followed on from the Coptic Church's celebration of Easter the previous week. 

The authorities were pressed into running a crackpot story about "​Bedouin 

suicide bombers killing Egyptians​". 

Since the invasion of Afghanistan (supposedly to capture Osama bin Laden), it 

had been necessary to create an illusion of "militant Muslim terrorists". Innocent 

Muslims - who simply had the misfortune to be in an Islamic country just at the 

very time that Israel's proxy armies were ordered to invade it - were picked up 

off the streets, designated as "al Qaeda enemy combatants", and shipped to 

Guantanamo Bay. Here they would be denied basic human rights, and detained, 

tortured​ or killed without due process. The US also flew some prisoners in CIA 

planes to Eastern European or Middle Eastern nations that practised more 

elaborate forms of torture. The aim was that some prisoners would "confess" to 

being al Qaeda members, having undergone terrorist training in a Muslim 

country, or having taken part in some terror attack that was probably a Mossad 

operation. 

The US and UK governments unsuccessfully tried to cover up the "​extraordinary 

rendition​" CIA torture flights; plane spotters fastidiously​ ​logged the numbers of 

CIA planes​. Although there was not always hard proof that prisoners were being 

taken for torture, they were certainly not being provided with international 

flights for a holiday or the benefit of their health and wellbeing. Israel's puppet 

states were also frustrated in their attempts to cover up their links with 

Uzbekistan's dictator​ ​Islam Karimov​. Victims of the despot are boiled alive, 

raped with broken bottles, have their fingernails and pieces of flesh pulled with 

pliers, their teeth and skulls smashed with hammers, and their limbs broken. 

The Blair government's support of human rights abuses was​ ​exposed by Craig 

Murray​, former British ambassador to Uzbekistan. 

On July 11, 2006, Mumbai was hit by a massive​ ​"7/11" terror attack​: 7 bombs 

exploded on 7 trains, all within 11 minutes of each other. More than 200 people 

were killed, and over 700 injured. The​ ​proficiency of the planning and execution 

indicated an aggressor with a​ ​long history of false-flag terror​. The bombs, a 

mixture of RDX, ammonium nitrate and fuel oil​, were detonated with​ ​timers​. 
Initial reports suggested that the authorities suspected Bangladeshis of carrying 

out the attack, but one would not have expected them to have had the 

resources, experience, opportunity or motivation to pull off the operation. 

Pakistan's intelligence agency ISI was then accused by India of planning the 

bombings, and although India claimed to have "pretty good evidence" (perhaps 

like Suqami's passport), they admitted that it was "not clinching evidence". And 

unless a perpetrator has a long-standing strategy for world domination by 

setting its opponents at each others' throats, it is hard to see how a cost-benefit 

analysis of such an operation could prove positive. 

Over a period of 11 days running up to the bombings,​ ​India had carried out a 

number of actions that would not have pleased Israel​. The Indian Defense 
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Minister postponed a planned visit to Israel regarding India's plans to purchase 

arms from Israel, India denied a request by the Israeli embassy to import 20 

handguns and also asked the Israelis to send 48 Glock pistols back to Tel Aviv, 

India voted against Israel on a resolution on the conflict in Palestine, and the 

Goa police blacklisted 25 foreign nationals including Israelis and Russians for 

drug trafficking. The Zionists' long-term strategy is to divide and conquer, and at 

the time they needed a distraction from their latest atrocities of attacking 

Palestinian and Lebanese civilians. 

Israel's summer 2006​ ​invasions of the Gaza Strip and Lebanon​ were both based 

on manufactured pretexts concerning allegedly "kidnapped" Israeli soldiers. On 

Friday June 9, 2006, Israel shelled a Gaza beach,​ ​exterminating an innocent 

picnicking family​. Israeli spokesmen tried to pretend that Israel's shells had 

landed a few hundred feet away or a few minutes before the fatal explosion, 

suggesting that a Palestinian mine buried in sand coincidentally just happened to 

go off as they were shelling the area. This claim was belied by the fact that 

physical evidence such as​ ​the crater size and injuries to the head and torso 

indicated a shell dropping from the sky​ rather than an explosion under sand. And 

in any case, there was no evidence to support the "wrong place" assertion, and 

the "wrong time" theory was quickly debunked​. 

The Gaza beach shelling was designed to provoke the Palestinians, in the hope 

that they might fight back and provide Israel with the excuse it needed to 

invade. Israel wanted a pretext of one or more of its soldiers having been 

kidnapped as the casus belli for its planned "​Operation Summer Rains​" bombing 

campaign against Gaza. By hook or by crook, Israel had its casus belli by June 

25, a mere sixteen days after the Gaza beach shelling. 

It was decided to run​ ​a far-fetched story​ about a​ ​"Palestinian terror cell" of eight 

somehow crawling undetected through a 650 meters long sand tunnel, of cross 

section 0.4 to 0.6 meters by 0.4 to 0.7 meters, whilst carrying a couple of RPGs, 

a few hand grenades and two or three rifles. These eight fighters were then 

supposed to have split up and taken on dozing Israelis who were manning a 

tank, an armored personnel carrier and a gun tower, with the Palestinians 

managing to kill two Israelis and then run half a mile across sand including 

cutting through a perimeter fence, with a captured, wounded prisoner, as the 

remaining Israelis stood down for long enough to let their attackers escape with 

the prisoner. More likely,​ ​the whole thing was staged​, and the 'kidnapped' tank 

gunner,​ ​Corporal Gilad Shalit​, was either captured after being lured across the 

border or had been killed in a road traffic accident. He was still missing at the 

end of 2006, amid​ ​reports that he was still alive​. 

By early July, 2006, Israel's air strikes were using weapons of dubious legality - 

shells containing​ ​radiation and poisonous chemicals​ to intensify injuries and 

heighten terror -​ ​to kill more than 50 Palestinians in a week​ and risk a 

humanitarian crisis by wrecking​ ​water and electricity supplies​. By December 

2006, some​ ​85 children had been killed and 365 injured​. This carnage was 
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allegedly to recover a single Israeli soldier held by Palestinian forces, even 

though Israel was​ ​holding over 9,000 Palestinian prisoners, 900 of them jailed 

without trial​. 

Israel's next plan was to attack Lebanon. In order to manufacture a pretext, 

small teams of soldiers were sent into Lebanon on "infiltration exercises" until 

two soldiers were arrested by Lebanese forces​. The Zionist media then spun the 

incident into a tale about a "​cross-border raid​" by lucky Hezbollah fighters. 

Bizarrely, there appears to be two kinds of lucky Gentiles: those who provide 

Zionists with an excuse to slaughter them, and those who are on the Zionist 

payroll. 

Israel's army chief, Dan Halutz,​ ​sold $26,000 worth of shares​ at noon on July 

12, three hours after the alleged "cross-border raid". The next day, the Tel Aviv 

Stock Exchange index plummeted by 8.3%. Halutz​ ​claimed that he did not think 

there would be a war when he sold the shares​, implying that the timing was just 

a lucky coincidence. 

Israel then proceeded to​ ​carpet Lebanon with 1.2 million cluster bomblets​, even 

though these were known to be highly inaccurate, bestowing a lethal legacy of 

hundreds of thousands of​ ​unexploded bomblets​ that would go on to​ ​kill and 

maim civilians​, one-third of whom were children. Most of the cluster rockets 

were fired in the final few days of the war leading up to the ceasefire, as Israel 

was determined to get in just as much ethnic cleansing as it possibly could. 

Israel deployed​ ​phosphorous bombs​, since these were known to increase 

mortality due to organ failure resulting from chemicals absorbed into the body 

after the bombs had burnt the skin away to the bone. That is, if the victim had 

not already been​ ​reduced to a lump of charred meat​. At first, Israel tried to 

claim that phosphorus was only used to "mark targets";​ ​it was then forced to 

concede​ that it had in fact​ ​used phosphorous shells against "military targets"​. 
Unfortunately, these "military targets" included​ ​8-year-old boys​ and​ ​young 

Lebanese girls​. Israel was also believed to have targeted Lebanon with 

thermobaric or vacuum bombs. 

Israel​ ​caused an environmental disaster​ by bombing Lebanon's Jiyeh power 

plant,​ ​spilling 15,000 tonnes of heavy fuel oil into the Mediterranean​, poisoning 

the water and killing marine life. As part of Israel's long-term ethnic cleansing 

program, Lebanon was dumped with uranium dust. US planes were stopping at 

UK airports en route to Israel, carrying​ ​laser-guided bombs with depleted 

uranium-tipped warheads​ destined for the Israeli Air Force. The Zionist war 

criminals' terror campaign also included firing at the​ ​very center of the crosses 

on Red Cross ambulances,​ ​bombing UN observers after giving assurances that 

UN positions would not be targeted​, and​ ​killing 33 farm workers and wounding 

20 others as they were picking peaches​. Israel then fabricated a cock and bull 

story about "buildings being used to store weapons", in an attempt to justify the 

murder of peaceful, unarmed agricultural workers. By the time world opinion had 

compelled Israel into accepting a ceasefire (which it reneged on), the conflict 
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had killed​ ​well over 1,000 Lebanese and over 100 Israelis​. Lebanese casualties 

were mostly civilians whereas Israel's dead were mostly IDF forces. Israel's Gaza 

initiative killed​ ​hundreds of Palestinians​; the number of Palestinian dead in 2006 

was​ ​about 400 higher than the 2005 toll​. As for the three abducted soldiers who 

were the casus belli for Israel's aggression, not one of them had been sighted by 

the end of 2006. 

Lickspittle Zionist lackeys George W Bush, Tony Blair and Pervez Musharraf 

concocted a​ ​ludicrous hoax​ about a bizarre plot to blow airliners out of the sky 

with "liquid explosives" that were to be assembled on flight. Problem is, it is​ ​not 

quite as simple as popping into the aircraft toilet for a few minutes and mixing 

two or three liquids​. Synthesis of TATP takes hours and requires a refrigerator. If 

the fumes didn't kill the terrorist and alert everyone else, and no one noticed 

that someone had taken various substances into the toilet and then failed to 

come out for hours on end, and if the terrorist had obtained a fair amount of ice, 

the products would still present minimal threat to the integrity of the aircraft. In 

order to detonate with sufficient force to go beyond blowing out a window or two 

and injuring or killing the terrorist, a large enough quantity of TATP would need 

to have formed. But this would not happen, because the reaction would turn 

violent before enough of the product had formed, and this "violent reaction" 

would be well short of a detonation​. The plot is​ ​totally implausible​. 

Unsurprisingly, in December 2006 the liquid bomb conspiracy theory took a 

hammering when the alleged ringleader, Rashid Rauf, was​ ​cleared of terrorism 

charges​. Rauf was found in possession of a disinfectant, and the authorities were 

reduced to trying to twist that into a charge of "possession of an explosive". 

Other so-called suspects had been found in possession of substances as 

dangerous as​ ​tins of baked beans, containers of peanut butter, and a cup of tea​. 
In any case, none of these suspects had purchased an airline ticket, and some 

did not even have a passport. Of course, the reality is that​ ​it is not some Islamic 

extremists who "hate our freedoms", it is Zionists​ such as Bush, Blair and 

Musharraf - and their handlers. The theory suffered another blow when it was 

announced that​ ​police were to call off the search​ at a strip of woodland where 

bomb-making equipment had allegedly been hidden, as none of the authorities 

were prepared to continue funding the operation. 

The liquid bomb plot hoax was partly to distract from Israel's recent Lebanon / 

Gaza atrocities, and partly to promote the "war on terror" as the pretext for 

converting free democracies into repressive police states and changing the role 

of the military from defensive purposes to wars of conquest for power and profit. 

Tony Blair's regime had plenty of previous form when it came to hoaxes about 

"Muslim conspiracies". In the Wood Green "ricin plot", for example, there​ ​never 

was any ricin​, and the plot consisted of police battering down enough doors in 

the early hours until someone panicked and fought back, whereupon he would 

be claimed as an "al Qaeda terrorist". In the Forest Gate "cyanide bomb plot", 

there​ ​never was any cyanide​, and the intelligence came from a single source -​ ​a 
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man with an IQ of 69​ whom the authorities had already jailed after framing him 

for another terror hoax! 

On November 23, 2006, Alexander Litvinenko died as a result of ingesting 

polonium-210, a​ ​very strong alpha emitter​. The element's​ ​abundance in the 

Earth's crust is only about 1 in 10^15​. He had been deliberately poisoned on 

November 1, 2006, at the Pine Bar of the Millennium Hotel, Mayfair, London. The 

Zionist mainstream media blamed Litvinenko's assassination on Russian 

president Vladimir Putin,​ ​who had no motive for the crime​. The killing of a single 

critic would be of dubious benefit, and heavily outweighed by negative publicity. 

And why not use a more tried and tested - and economical - method such as a 

"suicide" or a shooting that does not leave an obvious trail back to the 

perpetrator? On the other hand, Zionists, Israel, and oligarchs who plundered 

and fled Russia had several powerful motives for an assassination and 

deliberately depositing a radioactive trail around the globe. A state nearly the 

size of New Jersey, with a long history of conducting operations to foment 

conflict and hatred for political gain, that had been created in 1948 as a 

consequence of the actions of a Mafia that had carried out the very same 

strategy for centuries, would be a more logical suspect. 

Zionists are trying to promote Netanyahu's "war on terror" - with one aim being 

to do to Iran what they did to Iraq, Russia, Germany, etc. Up to July 11, 2006 

(​Mumbai​), the typical Mossad phony terror operation consisted of placing cell 

phone-detonated RDX bombs on trains, buses, in restaurants, hotels, and buried 

in sand, with corrupt politicians and leaders promoting​ ​a myth about "Muslim 

suicide bombers"​. In 2005 these terror attacks were being staged at a rate up to 

about two per month (e.g. July, October), but recently there has been quite a 

lull. Zionists hope to progress to the next phase, which would involve "dirty 

bomb" scares. British police are​ ​to purchase 12,000 chemical biological 

radiological and nuclear protective suits, and MI5 has tried to make out there is 

a threat from "bin Laden"​. 

On October 18, 2006, when Ehud Olmert was on a visit to Russia to try to tell 

Putin what he should do about Iran, Putin not only​ ​refused to listen to the 

'advice'​, but made a joke along the lines of Israel's president Moshe Katsav 

having the strength to "rape ten women"​. The amount of interest this generated 

can be seen in the fact that​ ​"putin" was the top gaining Google search​ in the last 

week of October, just before Litvinenko's poisoning. Or maybe some of the 

searches were Zionists trying to see what they could pin on Putin - pedophilia, 

corruption, etc. 

Israel would have been well aware of the effects of polonium-210 ingestion, as 

they evidently had an accidental release at the Weizmann Institute in 1957. A 

student was killed within a month, and three professors died prematurely (​see 

second half of page at this link​). Zionists had the means to obtain polonium. 
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The Jewish oligarchs (Berezovsky, Nevzlin, etc) want to poison relations between 

Russia and the UK as an additional reason (apart from having the politicians in 

their pocket) to prevent an extradition treaty (​in 2005, Nevzlin was already 

wanted by Russia for ordering the killing of 10 Russians​), and Netanyahu and 

the Zionist Mafia want to move forward with the war on terror. Putin's joke 

about Katsav would have helped the hawks sell their proposal to Israeli 

moderates. After the assassination operation, then in its fledgling stage with low 

levels of contamination being spread around the globe, was officially sanctioned, 

the Zionist media would prove only too happy to oblige with stories about Putin 

being the culprit. Zionists then have another sword with which to force 

presidents and prime ministers to accede to their demands. Their puppets don't 

want to find themselves accused of killing their political opponents; neither do 

they want to suffer a slow death by poisoning. 

In early December, the​ ​Israeli secret services went to London to "render 

assistance"​ in the case.​ ​Thirty Israeli "tourists"​ had been either staying at the 

Millennium Mayfair Hotel, or visiting the bar or restaurant, at around the time of 

Litvinenko's poisoning. Subsequent tests at Israel's Ministry of Health found that 

all of these Israelis were free of radiation contamination​. 

If Litvinenko, Kovtun and Lugovoi were couriers in a​ ​nuclear smuggling business​, 
Israel could have decided to exploit this and orchestrated the poisoning after 

arranging for Kovtun and Lugovoi to contaminate sites, leaving low-level Po-210 

traces in the last two weeks of October. Kovtun and Lugovoi, unable to admit to 

their role, would have to say they were framed for the poisoning. Or the three 

could have been offered smuggling jobs, in the preliminary part of Operation 

Polonium Putin. 

In 2018, with regard to Salisbury and Syria, the Jew-run lamestream legacy 

media has been peddling its usual lies. For example: 

Fake news #1: Putin and the Russians poisoned the Skripals with "Novichok 

nerve agent" at Salisbury. a) Whatever Sergei and Yulia Skripal - and Detective 

Sergeant Nick Bailey - were poisoned with, it was most likely a non-lethal 

hallucinogenic agent, rather than a deadly nerve agent "five to eight times" 

more lethal than VX, since all three survived and within weeks were all 

"​improving rapidly​". b) Putin had no motive to whack a defector involved in a 

spy swap after serving several years in a Russian prison, and moreover to do so 

in such a way that the hit would be traced back to Russia and result in more 

than twenty countries expelling Russian diplomats. c) Far from Russia being the 

only 'suspect' capable of making the alleged nerve agent, other suspects with 

the means and opportunity - and a motive - include​ ​the Zionist entity "Israel"​, 
Britain​, and​ ​the US​. d) Any alleged "secret training manual" instructing assassins 

how to smear nerve gas on door handles​ was most likely produced by a nation 

with a motive for framing Russia - such as "Israel", rather than Russia herself. 
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Fake news #2: Syrian government forces carried out "chemical attack" at 

Douma. a) There was no chemical attack at Douma, as demonstrated by 

journalists such as​ ​Pearson Sharp​ and​ ​Robert Fisk​. b) President Assad had no 

motive to use chemical weapons, days after Trump announced the US would "​be 

coming out of Syria like very soon​". c) The video 'evidence' showing children 

being hosed down, etc., was staged by anti-government, pro-terrorist, 

pro-Jewish "White Helmets", with the​ ​children given food​ in return for appearing 

in the propaganda video; the motive was to​ ​enable the terrorists to flee​ from 

Assad's forces. d) The alleged "chemical weapons" production facility targeted at 

Barzeh in the US/UK/French airstrikes is​ ​within a few hundred meters of 

Damascus suburbs​ and a university campus, and so those directing the airstrikes 

must have known the narrative was a pack of lies, since otherwise the whole 

area would have been contaminated leading to massive casualties and a 

humanitarian catastrophe. 

The establishment has even had the brass neck to accuse the broadcaster RT of 

"​bias​", despite the fact that​ ​Russia's position on the Skripal case​ is far more 

rational and in accordance with the facts than the British state propaganda. 

The big event of the first half of 2020 was the mass media-driven mass​ ​hysteria 

over a flu-type coronavirus​, that was shown to be no more deadly than the flu. 

For example, see the​ ​Stanford University study​ on random testing in Santa Clara 

County, in which infections were reckoned to be 50 to 85 times more widespread 

than government-backed statistics imply. The scam was based on two lies 

propagated by most governments and associated media, both of which are 

under the control of the usual suspects. 

Lie number one involved vastly deflating the denominator by not including 

asymptomatic or mild cases. By only counting cases where the patient is sick 

enough to seek medical help, then naturally the Case Fatality Rate (CFR) will 

appear much higher than the flu, which is around 0.1%. Moreover, counting 

deaths as Covid fatalities irrespective of whether the patient died of, or with, the 

virus, allows further manipulation of the CFR by inflating the numerator. 

Lie number two was the pseudoscientific claim that a lockdown and "social 

distancing" was needed to save millions from dying and health services from 

becoming overwhelmed. When it became clear that there was never any 

prospect of overwhelmed hospitals because the medical staff had plenty of time 

to make retarded dance videos, the new assertion was that the lockdown could 

not be instantly scrapped, and social distancing had to be maintained 

indefinitely, because of the risk of a "deadly" "second spike" of the virus. 

One merely needed to look at some international comparisons to see that a 

lockdown at best made little difference to reducing Covid deaths and at worst 

actually increased them. As of May 11, 2020, lockdown Britain had 473 Covid 

deaths per million of population compared with 323 dpm in Sweden and 14 dpm 

in Belarus, which both chose not to lockdown. And​ ​Office for National Statistics 
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weekly data​ already showed 12,765 excess deaths in England and Wales with no 

mention of Covid-19 on the death certificate in the first five full weeks of the 

lockdown. The lockdown policy certainly increases non-Covid deaths, and 

probably increases Covid deaths too. 

The lies, in particular, the one about alleged massive 'benefits' of a lockdown, 

were promoted by a dodgy professor, a so-called 'scientist' called Neil Ferguson 

whose Vaccine Impact Modelling Consortium is​ ​funded by​ the Gates Foundation, 

whose Event 201 scenario of October 2019 foresaw the very events that would 

follow within a month or two. So much of the​ ​simulation scenario​ ​matched the 

imminent reality that the possibility of mere coincidence becomes vanishingly 

close to zero. The scenario had a bat coronavirus make the species leap to 

humans via an intermediate animal, then get spread around the world by air 

travel and develop into a pandemic. 

Bill Gates met​ the child sex trafficker and pervert Jeffrey Epstein "on numerous 

occasions" since 2011, and in March 2013 Gates flew on Epstein's Gulfstream 

plane. Six months later, Gates and Epstein met for dinner and discussed the 

Gates Foundation and philanthropy. Epstein, who allegedly killed himself - 

allegedly being the operative word, had the job of luring rich and famous people 

with tales of being able to provide extraordinary levels of finance for 

"philanthropic" projects, then providing them with underage girls, so that they 

could be blackmailed into helping advance the globalists' diabolical satanic 

agenda. Bribery was not an option with billionaires, and so other methods were 

necessary. 

The Gates Foundation also​ ​funds research at MIT into a way of 'microchipping' 

people​, by using patches to administer a dye containing copper-based quantum 

dots, that stores information such as the 'patient's' medical record and emits 

near-infra red light that can be read from a smartphone with the infra-red filter 

removed. 

Sequencing of the COVID-19 genome traced it back to bats found in Yunnan 

caves. And the Wuhan Institute of Virology, funded by a $3.7 million grant from 

the US National Institutes of Health, was​ ​conducting coronavirus experiments on 

bats​ captured more than 1,000 miles away in Yunnan. Scientists cultivated a 

coronavirus in a lab and injected it into three-day-old piglets. 

This was a significant step in the Zionist Mafia's attempts to move towards global 

dictatorship, offering the prospect of a scared, compliant populace submitting to 

measures like microchipping, facial recognition, constant tracking through mobile 

phone apps, a loss of freedoms such as the right to travel and assemble, all 

under the guise of "saving" millions from being killed by a flu-like virus. 

The commonsense way of dealing with virus epidemics or pandemics is to let the 

vast majority of people continue to go about their usual business, so that herd 

immunity develops after three or four weeks and the virus is exterminated. 
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During the peak, vulnerable people such as those in care / nursing homes can be 

isolated, e.g. by paying the staff overtime to remain on site, which is much 

cheaper than wrecking the economy, throwing millions out of work, heaping up 

the national debt and letting businesses go to the wall. 

The best thing for people's mental and physical health is to continue to allow 

social contact, fresh air and sunlight to produce vitamin D, and keep the immune 

system working with additional vitamin supplementation, exercise and avoiding 

overeating and smoking. And don't stay locked inside and wash hands 

obsessively since that would lead to problems such as allergies. 

But that wouldn't allow the vaccine manufacturers and big drug companies to 

present themselves as our "saviours". It wouldn't maintain the 'threat' of a 

"deadly" "second spike", hanging over everyone like a sword of Damocles, that 

could be cited by the authorities as the reason for continuing to restrict liberties. 

And it wouldn't stop people from getting together and organizing resistance 

against the emerging Orwellian despotism. It wouldn't lead to a satisfied but 

misguided public who imagine that the government is looking after them and has 

their best interests at heart, a sheeple who mindlessly applaud health workers 

and fail to critically examine the mass media propaganda. 

In conclusion, the Zionist criminals are aware of the precarious nature of their 

predicament, as their myths and propaganda crumble, and their power base 

becomes ever more flimsy. The vast majority of Jews are not to blame for the 

crimes of their leaders, and humankind has already wasted so many lives in 

senseless tribal warfare and pogroms. A small clique persists, whose members 

will stand trial for their atrocious misdeeds, provided they live long enough. 

Relatively minor players and puppets such as Bush and Blair can be offered 

commutation to lengthy imprisonment terms if they sing like canaries. But after 

seventy years of propagating a hoax about gas chambers, there can be only one 

fitting penalty for the principal perpetrators of Zionist atrocities. 
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How Zionism works 

● Pretend that Zionism is simply about establishing a homeland for the 

Jews that will serve as a sanctuary where they may live peacefully out of 

the reach of "anti-Semites" 

● Start a world war 

● Claim that there are​ ​six million​ dead or dying Jews 

● If the hoax doesn't work at the first attempt, start another world war 

and exploit the ensuing chaos from the first to take control of Russia; 

settle old scores with the Rus for driving you out of Khazaria 
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● Claim to be "​God's Chosen People​", and trick the world's nations into 

letting you seize another people's land on a false prospectus 

● Dispossess the indigenous population of their homes and land, and be 

sure to treat them with such contempt that they resist the occupation with 

random acts of terror 

● Ensure that any peace talks fail by continuing to oppress the 

dispossessed and setting impossible conditions; blame it on your 

opponents' intransigence 

● Develop​ ​nuclear weapons​ for your very own sovereign state 

● Kill any U.S. president​ who opposes your plans to become a nuclear 

power; blame it on a "lone assassin" 

● Get the U.S. to provide you with conventional arms and billions of 

dollars of "foreign aid" annually 

● Have some sayanim phony up "hate crimes" against themselves in the 

rest of the world 

● Recruit brainwashed Jews into your foreign intelligence agency; convince 

them that they must steal passports, carry out assassinations and 

stage false-flag terrorism in order to "​save Jews​" worldwide from the 

"anti-Semites" 

● Strengthen your ability to use nuclear blackmail as a bargaining chip by 

obtaining submarines capable of firing nuclear-tipped cruise missiles 

with a 900-mile range 

● Exploit your false-flag terrorism attacks for all they are worth: have 

your agents go on TV within hours​ to peddle the official narrative; whip up 

sufficient outrage, e.g. by ensuring the collapse of several skyscrapers, 

that your "allies" will sacrifice thousands of their troops and waste vast 

sums fighting your enemies in order to convert them into Rothschildian 

'democracies', at no cost to you 

● Carry on until there is a Rothschild central bank in every nation 
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